
          SELECT BOARD 
         AGENDA 

   Tuesday, May 23, 2023 
        7:00pm    

  Rich Maiore, Erin McBee, Kara McGuire Minar, Don Ludwig, Charles Oliver 

Pursuant to Chapter 2 of the Acts of 2023, An Act Making Appropriations for the Fiscal Year 2023 to Provide for 
Supplementing Certain Existing Appropriations and for Certain Other Activities and Projects, and signed into law on 
March 29, 2023, this meeting will be conducted via remote participation. Interested individuals can listen in and 
participate by phone and/or online by following the link and phone number below. 

UpperTH ProWebinar is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 
Topic: Select Board 
Time: May 23, 2023 07:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82485863399?pwd=MXRIanZpK0ZkUmZWeDF4K215ZlZyUT09 
Meeting ID: 824 8586 3399 
Passcode: 443271 
One tap mobile 
+13052241968,,82485863399# US
+13092053325,,82485863399# US
Dial by your location - Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kwIpsPQi2

AGENDA ITEMS 

1) Call meeting to order – Chair Rich Maiore
2) Quarterly update from the Energy Advisory Committee (7:00)
3) Public Communication (7:15)
4) Discuss potential merger of Fire/Ambulance departments and fire station building next steps (7:20)
5) Approve minutes from 4/26 & 4/29 (7:50)
6) Staff Report/Updates (7:55)
7) Action/Discussion Items: (8:10)

a) Appoint Guy Herman to the Energy Advisory Committee
b) Discuss asset cap for senior tax program
c) Ginny Thurston scholarship

8) Select Board Reports
9) Executive Session: per MGL Ch. 30A, s. 21(a)3: To discuss strategy with respect to collective bargaining if an open

meeting may have a detrimental effect on the bargaining of the public body and the chair so declares. The Select Board
will reconvene into open session only to adjourn.

Next Regular Select Board Meeting 
Tuesday, June 6, 2023 

7:00pm 

Posted 5.18.2023 at 4:00pm by JAD

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82485863399?pwd=MXRIanZpK0ZkUmZWeDF4K215ZlZyUT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kwIpsPQi2


Quarterly Update to Select Board
May 23, 2023

5/23/23 1

Town of Harvard Energy Advisory Committee (HEAC)

MEMBERS:
BRIAN SMITH – CHAIR
DAVID FAY
FORREST HODGKINS 
PETER KELLY-JOSEPH
ELLEN SACHS-LEICHER

KARA MINAR, SELECT BOARD LIAISON



HEAC FY23 Goals

No. Goal Lead Support

1 Decarbonization Plan – Reduce Emissions Brian Ellen

2 Buildings – Electrification Plan; Assessment / Energy Reduction 
Projects

Forrest Brian/David

3 Vehicles – Convert to Electric Vehicles Peter Forrest

4 Vehicles – Charging Stations Brian Peter

5 Green Community Program – Meet Obligations and Maximize 
Grants

Brian Forrest/David

6 Renewable Electricity – Solar Photovoltaic Systems David Brian

7 Renewable Electricity – Energy Supply Ellen David

8 Streetlights – Replace with LED Fixtures David Brian

5/23/23 Town of Harvard Energy Advisory Committee 2



① Decarbonization Plan – Reduce Emissions

Goal - Reduce Emissions 50% by 2030, 85% by 2050 to align with MA

Town of Harvard Energy Advisory Committee 35/23/23

Action Status Next Step
1. Close out consultant grant by May 

2023.
Finalizing deliverables. NA

2. Municipal Decarbonization plan –
finalize plan by May 2023.

Finalizing changes. Perform final stakeholder review.

3. Community Decarbonization plan –
finalize by May 2023.

Finalizing changes. NA



② Buildings – Electrification Plan; Building Assessment

Goal – Convert Harvard’s municipal buildings from carbon-based fuel combustion 
to high efficiency electric heating.
• Building Electrification  Focus on Bromfield due to funding available

• Building Energy Assessment – identify energy reduction projects prior to electrification

Town of Harvard Energy Advisory Committee 45/23/23

Action Status Next Step
1. Develop a detailed long-range 

plan for strategic electrification, 
with financial analysis, to 
upgrade municipal building 
heating systems.

Bromfield - NGRID funded a scoping 
study of the heat pump options for 
electrification. Completed by B2Q 
4/13/23. Reviewed with School Dept –
proceeding with Air-to-Air heat pumps 
integrated with rooftop air handlers.

1. Perform engineering design as part of the 
HVAC  replacement funding authorized by 
Town meeting.

2. School dept to issue RFP.
3. HEAC to support process and funding; 

significant NGRID incentives and other 
grants.

Action Status Next Step
1. Define audit plan and funding. World Energy reviewed Town Hall and 

Public Safety buildings in Dec 2023; Jan 
2024 at no cost, funded by NGRID.

World Energy did not issue a written proposal. 
No meaningful recommendations.
 Effort on hold



③ Vehicles – Convert to Electric Vehicles

Goal - Convert Harvard’s municipal vehicles from carbon-based fuel 
combustion to electric vehicles or other low carbon options

 Initial target – replace all light duty vehicles with EV’s by 2040.

Town of Harvard Energy Advisory Committee 55/23/23

Action Status Next Step
1. Prepare Town Vehicle Inventory. 

Coordinate with NGRID Fleet 
Advisory program consultant. 

Inventory complete. 
Fleet Electrification Report funded by NGRID 
consultant completed 10/10/22.

NA

2. Identify candidates for 
replacement in short term.

Police/Fire Dept agree to use EV’s once approved 
for operational use.
1. FY23 police hybrid purchased.
2. FY24 qty 2 police hybrids planned, qty 1 fire 

chief hybrid vehicle planned.
3. New school van – electric option considered.

Chief Babu investigating police 
patrol ready EV options.

3. Obtain quotes and identify 
funding sources.

Current Green Community grants are $10k per 
hybrid vehicle; may change.

Prepare as part of 2023 Block 2 
Green Community application.



④ Vehicles – Charging Stations

Goal - Convert Harvard’s municipal vehicles from carbon-based fuel 
combustion to electric vehicles or other low carbon options

 Install chargers per plan by 2030. Maximize grant funding.

Town of Harvard Energy Advisory Committee 65/23/23

Action Status Next Step
1. Create Charger Plan for Town use 

on Town property.
Feasibility reviews 
performed by ECI. 
Priority – Fast charger for 
Police dept.

1. Obtain quote for Fast charger from ECI by 5/31. 
2. ECI to submit application to NGRID.
3. Police dept to submit request for funding not 

covered by grants.

2. Create Charger Plan for public 
use on Town property

Feasibility reviews 
performed by ECI. 
Priority – Standard charger 
at Bromfield.

1. Obtain quote for standard charger from ECI by 
5/31. 

2. ECI to submit application to NGRID.
3. School dept to approve additional funding for 

networking.

3. Issue overall Town charging 
station plan.

Draft plan for municipal 
property locations created. 

1. Finalize and submit to Town stakeholders for 
comment.

2. Determine plan for non-municipal.



⑤ Green Community Program

Goal – Meet Obligations and Maximize Grants
• Existing Program and Grants

• Prepare for Climate Leaders Program

Town of Harvard Energy Advisory Committee 75/23/23

Action Status Next Step
1. Submit final report for Spring 2021 Grant Round. Completed Sep 2022 NA

2. Prepare application and submit to DOER by Oct 3 for 
2022 Block 2 Competitive grant.

Completed Oct 2022 NA

3. Submit Green Community Annual Report by Nov 4. Completed Nov 2022 NA

4. Execute on Green Community Grant 2022 Block 2
$10k Hybrid Police Vehicle; $17k Library Weatherization

Award Jan 2023 1. Complete Library project by 5/31. 
2. Submit final report by 6/30.

Action Status Next Step
1. Specialized MA Stretch Building Code –

Adopt in 2023.
Intro meeting with key 
committees planned 5/22/23.

1. Prepare plan to obtain approval at 
Fall 2023 Town Meeting.

2. Hire Municipal clean energy coordinator. No work yet. On Hold



⑥ Renewable Electricity – Solar Photovoltaic Systems

Goal – Convert all electricity to 100% renewable sources.
• Solar PV – Install 3 systems on town owned property and commission by 2025.

• Battery Storage – Install 2 battery storage systems and commission by 2025

Town of Harvard Energy Advisory Committee 85/23/23

Action Status Next Step
1. SB Goal 1) Utilize the capital fund for at 

least one solar PV project on a building
COA - $170k approved. Public 
Safety Bldg – delayed for new roof

COA - PBC subcommittee action.

2. SB Goal 2) … municipal solar panel field to 
generate revenues

Stow Road gravel pit good for solar 
PV. No progress.

Obtain PPA proposal from Solect.

3. Solar PV Strategy – define roadmap for 
electric load and mix of source & type

In process Complete draft for review by SB

4. Evaluate solar PV feasibility of all sites. On hold – no progress

5. Solar PV project on old landfill after closure Concept approved Town Meeting. Investigate PPA option.

Action Status Next Step
1. Add to HES PV system and evaluate others. No progress. 1. Establish project scope and owner.



⑦ Renewable Electricity – Energy Supply

Goal – Convert all electricity to 100% renewable sources.
• Residential Electricity Supply – Community Choice Aggregation

• Municipal Electricity Supply

Town of Harvard Energy Advisory Committee 95/23/23

Action Status Next Step
1. Town Procurement finalize 100% 

renewable supply as default option 
starting Nov 2022.

Town selected one year 
term expires Nov 2023.
Town renewing with two-
year term Nov 2023-2025?

DOER Climate Leaders program specifies 
100% Class 1 Renewable option. Include for 
renewal in Q3 2023.

2. Support rollout of new electricity supply 
program.

HEAC support as needed. 1. Town to ensure Colonial Power issues 
notice to customers. 

Action Status Next Step
1. For next term, DOER Climate Leaders 

program requires at least 2X the 
minimum RPS Class 1 Renewable supply. 

Term expires Dec 2024 Town Procurement to include 100% or 2X min 
RPS Class 1 (per DOER CL) during renewal in 
Q3 2024.



⑧ Streetlights – Replace with LED Fixtures

Goal – NGRID program to replace Streetlights with LED Fixtures 
• Details – 44 lights eligible, Save ~$1600 per year, One Time rebate $3400

Town of Harvard Energy Advisory Committee 105/23/23

Action Status Next Step
1. Town Approval Select Board approved 2/2/21 NA

2. Review with Historical Commission Completed Jan-Mar 2022; 
Requested warmer light

David Fay to review next steps with HHC

3. NGRID install warmer light test fixture Complete. Lower watt fixture 
installed Apr 2023.

NA

4. Review Fairbanks Street neighbor 
concerns

Reviewed at 3 HEAC meetings. 
Too bright.

Obtain feedback on replacement fixture

5. Release NGRID to replace all Town 
streetlight fixtures

Pending above.



Harvard Ambulance Service
Harvard Fire Department Merge 

● History

● Operational Challenges

● Administrative Challenges

● Proposed Merged Department Benefits

● Next Steps

● Questions



HAS History
● HAS is an independent organization working within the Public Safety framework 

providing 911 ambulance response for 50 years
● Historically staffed and managed exclusively by volunteers
● 2016 Collins Report
● First full time FF/EMT employed by HFD hired 5 years ago 
● In 2023, second full time FF/EMT hired reporting to HFD Chief Sicard

○ An interim director of HAS named as a result



Operational Challenges

● Call volume has consistently risen for the last 5 years
○ 2022 was a record year with 417 calls
○ 2025 on-track for another 25% increase in call volume

● Significant increase in the EMT scope of practice in the last decade
○ Over a dozen new medications and numerous advanced procedures have been added, all 

which require constant training and proficiency checks
○ EMTs must be recertified every 2 years

● In 2020, the state declined to renew the “cadet waiver” essentially ending the 
feeder program of in town EMT’s

● This is not a local problem: nationally, EMS systems are stressed due to high 
turnover, low pay, and COVID burnout



Operational Challenges (cont.)

● All contiguous towns to Harvard employ full-time EMT/FF

● Due to the need for rapid response, volunteer EMTs need to be stationed in 

town
○ The approx 85% of new EMTs joining in the past 4 years do not live in Harvard

● 90% of our calls are covered by 20% of the EMT’s on the Service

● Creating new EMTs is expensive and time consuming



Administrative Challenges

● Since the inception of HAS, the Director has been a non-paid volunteer role
○ This means there is limited to no exposure for the Service to conferences, industry events, and day-to-

day interaction with HPD/HFD/town government
● HAS administrative staff is comprised of nine members who accept these positions in 

addition to their roles as EMTs responding to calls,  many of whom also serve as Field 
Training Officers to assist in training new members.  More time is typically spent on 
administration, and waiting for calls than actually providing 911 medical services.



Summary Challenges - just in ten years

● The demand of individuals to maintain EMT licenses are higher
● The risks as an individual are higher
● The administration time / resources needed are higher
● This is a national problem



Benefits of Merging with HFD

● Better representation for HAS to Town Hall and Fire/EMS community at 

large

● Many administrative staff tasks are now handled by f/t EMS Coordinator

● More consistent on-boarding for new volunteers

● Simpler hiring process for addition full time EMT/FF in the future

● More training with HFD for MVA and other shared response 911 calls

● Potential for grant funding that is not available to HAS now



Questions



in association with

Feasibility and Space Needs Study 

HARVARD FIRE HEADQUARTERS

HARVARD, MASSACHUSETTS





 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

PROJECT DIRECTORY 

 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

 

2. CODE ANALYSIS 

 

3. EXISTING CONDITIONS REPORT 

 

3.1 ARCHITECTURAL 

3.2 STRUCTURAL 

3.3 PLUMBING SYSTEMS 

3.4 MECHANICAL SYSTEMS 

3.5 ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS 

 

4. SPACE NEEDS 

 

5. SITE SELECTION ANALYSIS 

 

6. OPINION OF PROBABLE COST  

 

7. APPENDIX 

 

7.1 EXISTING BUILDING DRAWINGS 

 

 





 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

  





 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 
   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

 

HARVARD FIRE STATION STUDY 

 
The Harvard Fire Headquarters Feasibility and Space Needs Study commenced in mid 2019 when the 

Kaestle Boos Associates (KBA) Team was selected by the Town. As part of the KBA team, Mitchell 

Associates Architects (MAA) was responsible for the Firematic Programming of the study, while Kaestle 

Boos Associates concentrated on the Evaluation of existing facility, Site Selection/ Analysis and Opinion 

of Probable Costs.  

The Study commenced with a field inspection of the Harvard Fire Department’s (HFD) current facility by 

architectural and engineering staff to determine its current condition. While it was evident that the facility 

could not meet the operational requirements for a modern Fire Station, formal documentation of the 

facility was conducted.  

Within the existing fire station many of the operations and workspaces are extremely cramped by 
insufficient space.  In all cases, the building has functionally outlived its useful service life for modern 
fire operations.  
 
Below are examples of non-compliant code or safety standard, conditions observed at the existing station.  
A complete list is included in the study report.  These conditions expose the Fire Department staff to 
safety hazards and the Town to liability. 
 

1. Building Code: 
a. Structurally the facilities do not meet current seismic (earthquake) design and would likely 

suffer major damage in a seismic event, a situation in which demand for emergency response 
would peak. 

b. There are no sprinkler systems to protect life safety and apparatus in case of fire. 
 

2. Plumbing Code: 
a. Fixtures do not meet Federal water conservation requirements 
b. Fixtures are not handicapped accessible 

 
3. HVAC Code: 

a. Non-compliant amount of fresh air changes (insufficient ventilation per Code). 
 

4. Electrical Code: 
a. Most systems (lighting, power, emergency lighting, and fire alarm) no longer meet code 

requirements or safety standards. 
 

5. ADA/MAAB (handicapped accessibility) 
a. No public toilets.  Public is forced to use existing staff toilet/shower/locker facilities which 

are not handicapped accessible (turning radius’, reach limits, thresholds….)  
b. No separate toilet/shower/locker facilities for female fire fighters or staff. 
 

All these issues, and others identified in the ‘Code Review’ & “Existing Conditions Survey’ sections of 
the study will need to be addressed in any addition/renovation or new construction recommendation.  



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 
   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

Concurrently, Robert Mitchell of (MA) issued a department questionnaire and began a series of meetings 

with key department staff to assess the needs of the department. The product of these meetings was a 

Space Needs Program developed based on the synergies of combining the Fire Station and Department 

Headquarters in a single facility.  As a result of this analysis it was determined that a 23,500 square foot 

facility was required to meet both Station and Headquarter requirements 

Concurrent with development of the Needs Assessment and Program, our Site Evaluation team worked on 

analyzing the existing site and two possible alternate sites in town as suggested by the Fire Chief. In the 

end 3 sites were analyzed; the Town-owned Massachusetts Ave, the privately-owned Ayer Road and the 

Town-owned existing Fire Station site. 

A one and two-story (plus firematic support mezzanine) conceptual design solutions for the new facility 

was developed based on the Program, selected sites and subsequent meetings with department staff.  This 

plan was used to complete the site analysis, resulting in the existing fire station site being eliminated due 

to insufficient lot size and circulation. 

Further analysis of these sites resulted in the elimination of the existing station and site.  Some of the 

issues that lead to the elimination of the existing site are as follows: 

• Unknown structural remediation to the existing structure to comply with the seismic requirement 

of the current building code. 

• Renovating existing spaces results in potential compromises in programmatic/operational 

adjacencies of spaces – A result of having to ‘fit’ spaces into the space available rather than space 

required. 

• Apparatus maneuverability is too restricted –Survey will need to be done to establish property 

lines and setbacks. 

 

After escalating the construction costs through the middle of construction (estimated mid 2021), the 

Opinion of Probable Costs (OPC) for the single-story option results in a total probable project cost of 

$17,775,000.  Note, it does not include any costs for site acquisition or reuse/development of the existing 

facility.  An OPC the multi-story option was not made as it would result in a higher project cost and was 

not the preferred option. 

 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CODE ANALYSIS 
 

  





 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 
   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

CODE ANALYSIS OF EXISTING FACILITY 
 

APPLICABILITY 
 

This analysis reviews the existing Harvard Fire Station at 13 Ayer Road in Harvard, MA, with regard to 
the Massachusetts State Building Codes (“Code”) for new construction.  The 9th Edition consists, in part, 
of the 2015 International Building Code (IBC) and the 2015 International Existing Building Code (IEBC) 
with Massachusetts Amendments to these codes.    
Codes used in this analysis are:  

• International Building Code (IBC, 2015) 

• International Existing Building Code (IEBC, 2015) 

• International Energy Conservation Code (IECC, 2015) 

• Massachusetts State Building Code Amendments (780 CMR 9th Edition) 

• Architectural Access Board Rules and Regulations (521 CMR, 2006) 

• Uniform State Plumbing Code (248 CMR)  

Mechanical systems, including electrical, plumbing, and fire protection systems, are reviewed in separate 
sections of this study.  Investigative demolition was not performed and comments in this report are based 
on visual observation and the Town provided information regarding the existing building in the form of 
original construction drawings. 
 
Renovations to existing structures must be reviewed for code compliance by one of three separate 
methods in the IEBC: The Prescriptive Method, the Performance Method, and the Work Area Method. 
Within these methods, the modifications required for compliance vary dependent upon the extent of the 
renovation work; renovation work is classified as Repair, Alteration Level 1, Alteration Level 2, and 

Alteration Level 3.  When the extent of the repair and alteration work exceeds 50% of the aggregate area 
of the building, this work is classified as Alteration Level 3 and, under this classification; compliance with 
requirements of Alteration Level 1 and Alteration Level 2 is also required. Alteration Level 2 requirements 
are enforced when the work involves reconfiguration of spaces or systems, but not more than 50% of the 
total building area.   Alteration Level 1 requirements are enforced when the work is cosmetic or 
replacement of existing materials with similar materials, such as re-roofing projects. All analyses in this 
study is based on the worst-case assumption of a renovation to more than 50% of the building and so is 
classified as Alteration Level 3 and under the Work Area Method.   
 
Upgrades and corrections to existing structures undergoing renovations are limited to specific items under 
the IEBC.  During renovations, not all existing safety issues and non-compliant conditions are required to 
be corrected; typically, only items within each renovated area is required to be corrected.  However, non-
compliant conditions at egress elements, accessibility, and fire protection (sprinklers) are required to be 
corrected or provided as required by the IBC.  Because this building was originally constructed in 1975, 
existing conditions which may be allowed to remain, or “grandfathered”, under the limited requirements 
of the IEBC may also be in conflict with current life safety standards.  Over time since it’s construction, 
life safety standards have been improved in reaction to tragic events.  In order to provide life safety 
conditions in accordance with the most current intent, current IBC and Fire Safety codes and regulations 
are also used as a basis for judging compliance. All modifications that are required by the IBC but which 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 
   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

are discretionary (not necessarily required by the IEBC for this renovation) are noted in the 
recommendations. 
 
Compliance with Chapter 148 Section 26G of the State Fire Code is required by the IEBC for all new 
buildings, additions, and renovations classified as Alteration Level 3.  This regulation also requires that in 
all existing buildings in which renovations will exceed 7,500 square feet in area or in which major 
alterations are planned, as defined by the statute, must provide a full sprinkler fire suppression system if 
available water flow and pressure is available.  A major alteration is reconfiguration of walls, doors, 
windows, mechanical systems, etc., which effectively makes installation of sprinkler systems easier and 
which affects more than 33% of the building area or more than 33% of the assessed value of the building.  
  
Accessibility in public buildings is regulated by 521 CMR, which is enforced by the Massachusetts 
Architectural Access Board (MA AAB) and the Building Inspector of the municipality.  ADA (the 
Americans with Disabilities Act) is a federal law; while this is not enforced by the local authority 
compliance is still required and any person may file suit for compliance.  521 CMR, as issued in 2006, is 
used for this review.  MA AAB 5.1 Definitions states:  
“Public Buildings: A building privately or publicly financed that is open to and used by the public, 
including but not limited to …, municipal buildings, commercial buildings, buildings having places of 
assembly, [etc.] …” 
Harvard Fire Station is a public, municipal building and is required to be accessible in accordance with 
521 CMR. 
 
Currently, the AAB regulates only areas and conditions accessed by the “public”; areas occupied solely 
by staff are not included in the regulation.  Staff areas are included in the ADA Accessibility Guidelines 
as part of federal law, but these are not directly enforceable as part of the Building Code.  However, in an 
effort to unify compliance requirements with the recently adopted IBC as the State Building Code, the 
AAB will be revising the regulation to include staff areas as well as public areas.   In anticipation of the 
release of this revised AAB document, all discussions below regarding accessibility will include 
compliance of staff areas. 
  
Applicability of the AAB Regulations for renovations of existing buildings is based on the value of the 
renovations as a percentage of the current assessed value of the building only (100% valuation).  
According to AAB 3.3, partial compliance is required when the value of the renovations exceeds 
$100,000 and full compliance of the entire facility is required when the value of the renovations exceeds 
30% of the assessed value of the building.  An exception to this rule is for maintenance work on MEP 
systems, sprinkler systems, roofs, replacement windows, masonry repair, site utilities, landscaping, and 
septic system which in aggregate is less than $500,000. 
As stated in AAB 3.3 (paraphrased): 
“3.3 EXISTING BUILDINGS  
All additions to, reconstruction, remodeling, and alterations or repairs of existing public buildings or 
facilities …shall be governed by all applicable subsections in 521 CMR.  
3.3.1 a. if the work costs less than $100,000, then only the work being performed is required to comply 

with 521 CMR…,  
b. if the work costs $100,000 or more, then the work being performed is required to comply with 
521 CMR. In addition, an accessible public entrance and an accessible toilet room, telephone, 
drinking fountain (if toilets, telephones and drinking fountains are provided) shall also be 
provided in compliance with 521 CMR…,  

3.3.2 If the work performed, including the exempted work, amounts to 30% or more of the full and fair 
cash value (see 521 CMR 5.00) of the building the entire building is required to comply with 521 CMR. “ 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 
   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

Also, according to AAB 3.5, any work performed, even if under separate contracts or building permits, 
within a 3-year period must be included in the aggregate construction cost.   This includes sitework and 
building renovations, whether done separately or together.  Future Change Orders and future building 
projects within 3 years before or after the permit date for this project, could also trigger full compliance if 
the aggregate value exceeds the 30% limit. 
 
Energy conservation, as required by the IECC for new construction, is not required for renovations to 
existing structures under the IEBC.  However, any new elements or alterations to the exterior building 
envelope, such as new windows or new roofing, must comply to the greatest degree possible.  As stated in 
the IEBC Alteration Level 3 Section 808 Energy Conservation “Essentially, the entire building is not 

require to meet the energy provisions, but only improvement in the energy performance of the building is 

intended to be achieved by making the new elements meet the IECC…”.   Overall upgrade of the exterior 
envelope of the building is not required  
 
According to the Town of Harvard Assessor’s Office, the current assessed value of the building (not 
including the site) is $279,700 and so the threshold value of the cost triggers for accessibility and fire 
protection are, respectively:  

• if the cost of permitted renovations exceeds $83,910 (over a consecutive 3-year period), then the 
entire building and site must be modified to be accessible, 

• if the cost of permitted renovations exceeds $92,301 (over the current 5-year period), or if the 
renovation area exceeds 7,500 square feet, then the entire building must be sprinklered. 

 
Information for work requiring building permits was not available from the Town of Harvard Building 
Department.  As such, the aggregate cost for permitted work in the last 5 years is not considered in the 
calculation of the cost threshold for compliance.   Also, as the cost of a renovation under this study is 
presumed to exceed these 30% and 33% cost thresholds shown below, the entire site and building must be 
made to comply with current accessibility codes and fully sprinklered as part of a renovation of the 
building. 
 

COST THRESHOLDS FOR ACCESSIBILITY AND FIRE SUPPRESSION 

COMPLIANCE 

Assessed Value of Harvard Fire Station (Structure Only) $279,700 

30% Cost Trigger for Accessibility Compliance  $   83,910 

33% Cost Trigger for Fire Protection  $   92,301 

 
 

BUILDING CODE 
 

IBC Ch.  3 – Use and Occupancy  
(IBC 305.1) Primary Use: Group B – Business 
(IBC 305.1) Mixed Use Areas:  Group R-2 Residential (Bunk Area)  

Group S-2 Storage (Apparatus Bay, Storage) 
 

 

 

IBC Ch.  2B – Types of Construction  
(IBC Table 601) The existing building was built in 1975.  The building was constructed of masonry (load 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 
   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

bearing) structure with non-fire rated concrete masonry units and metal stud interior framing for walls.  
The roof is framed with open web steel joists and steel beams.  The roof deck is made up of cementitious 
panels with insulated panels on the exterior.  As a worst case, this open web joist frame construction 
conforms to the requirements for Type II-B (“II” references roman numeral 2, “B” references unprotected 
construction) construction in the current IBC. The structure is not protected with spray fireproofing or 
other fire-rated construction. Interior partitions are typically non-load bearing metal studs stud with 
plaster or drywall. 

      
Type II-B Construction Type Min. Fire Resistance Rating Requirements (780 CMR Table 601) 

Building Elements 
Required Fire Resistance Rating 

(Hrs.) 

Structural Frame (including columns, girders, and trusses) 0 

Exterior Bearing Walls  0 

Interior Bearing Walls 0 

Exterior Non-Bearing Walls and Partitions  0 

Interior Non-Bearing Walls and Partitions  0 

Floor Construction (including support beams and joist) 0 

Roof Construction (including support beams and joist)  0 

 

Table 601 establishes the required minimum fire rating of construction elements and is related to the 
allowable height and area discussed in Table 503 below.  Type II-B (2-B) construction does not require 
that the exterior bearing wall structural members to be protected (fire rated) and that all interior structural 
members do not need to be fire rated.  The exterior masonry walls are assumed, to be inherently fire rated 
for a minimum of 2 hours.  The tradeoff for not protecting the interior building structure under 
Classification II-B is a reduction in the allowable height and area that can be built; essentially, the greater 
the fire protection of building structural elements, the larger the building height and area which is 
allowed. 
 

IBC Ch.  5 – General Building Limitations  
Height and area limitations are presented below based on the allowable limits stated in Table 504 for 
Building Height and in Table 506 for Building Area for the building Use Groups and Construction Type 
noted above. Because the requirements of MGL Chapter 148 Section 26G will most likely require that a 
sprinkler system be installed, the allowable height and area referenced from Tables 504 and 506 are from 
this category.   
 
 
Other uses within the mixed-use building cannot exceed an area proportional to the percentage of the area 
that Use Group occupies in the building. Because future uses of the building are unknown, the allowable 
area is calculated based on the Business Use Group only. 
 
 
(Table 504.3, 504.4 & 506.2) The allowable height and area for Use Groups under Type II-B (2-B) 
Construction is: 
 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 
   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

USE 
GROUP 

Allowable Height  
(Sprinklered)   

Allowable Area   
(Sprinklered) 

Accessible 
Perimeter  
+25% (Average) 

Total Allowable Area per Floor 
with Allowable Increases 

B 3 Story (55 Feet)   69,000 sf. +   5,750 sf. 74,750 sf. 

S-2 3 Story (55 Feet)   78,000 sf. +   6,500 sf. 84,500 sf. 

R-2 4 Story (55 Feet)   48,000 sf. +   4,000 sf. 52,000 sf. 

 

The occupied floor area for the building is shown below.  It is as reported in the Town of Harvard 
Assessor’s Card for the building and are not based on construction documents or field measurements.  For 
the purpose of estimating the number of occupants, occupancy in the residential area is estimated based 
on the number of bunk beds in the sleeping room and not by allocating specific Use Groups to floor areas.   
 

First Floor: Total Area:       5,586 GSF 59 occupants (6 R-2 and 53 Business Use)                                   

TOTAL BUILDING AREA:         5,586 GSF  

 

(IBC 508.2.4 and Table 508.4) Table 508.4 shows the fire separation requirements between Use Groups.  
A 2-hour fire rated partition and ceiling/floor is required between a B Use and an R-2 while there is no 
fire separation between a B Use and an S-2 Use in an unsprinklered building.  This condition exists in the 
current building, but these use groups are not separated by fire rated partitions. 
In 508.2.4, rooms used for storage (S-2) and residence (R-2) may be considered to be accessory to the 
primary Use Group (B) if the aggregate area of these rooms is less than 10% of each floor area and 
smaller than the area allowed by Table 503. Spaces considered to be accessory to the primary use are not 
required to be separated from the primary use by fire rated partitions. 

 The Storage S-2 use (Apparatus Bay) and the Residential R-2 use (dormitory) are more than 10% 
of the floor area on which each use exists and so these areas cannot be considered accessory uses. 

 
Alternatively, the building may be classified entirely under the most restrictive Use Group, Residential R-
2, and void the requirements for fire separations between use groups.  This is essentially a trade-off for 
using the lesser allowable area of the most restrictive use group.  

 In this instance, the current building would comply if considered to be entirely of the R-2 use 
group.  This classification is only for the purposes of determining compliance with allowable 
height and area provisions of the Code; in all other aspects of the Code, these areas shall be 
classified by their own use. 

 
IBC Ch.  7 – Fire and Smoke Protection  
(Table 706.4 Fire Walls) The floor area of the existing Fire Station is approximately 5,586 Gross Square 
Feet (GSF) on one floor.   

 All floor areas of the building are less than the allowable gross area stated in Table 506 and are 
compliant. Fire walls to separate building are not required. 

 

IBC Chapter 10 - Means of Egress   

(Table 1004.1) Occupancy load in the existing facility is determined by the functions in each area of the 
building and not the primary use group.  According to the IBC Table 1004.1.2, Business functions require 
an occupant load calculated at 100 gross square feet (gsf) per person, dormitory functions are calculated 
at 50 net square feet (nsf) per person, Apparatus Bays are calculated as Parking Garages at 200 gsf per 
person, and Mechanical/Storage areas are calculated at 300 gsf per person.  The summary above estimates 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 
   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

the relative areas for each use group.  
 
The egress capacity (0.15”/ per occupant for unsprinklered buildings) for a typical single 36-inch wide 
egress doorway is approximately 240 occupants.  The First Floor is estimated to have an occupancy of 59 
persons. 
 

(IBC 1015.2.1) requires that in unsprinklered buildings on floors with more than one exit, that these exits 
are separated by a minimum of ½ of the overall diagonal distance of the entire building.   

 The egress man-doors are all located on opposite sides of the building, so the separation of exits 
does comply. 

 

(IBC 1008.1.1) requires that all egress doorways provide a minimum clear width of 32 inches from the 
face of the door to the frame.   

 As most of the doors and doorways in the residential areas of the building are sized for 36-inch 
wide doors, these openings do comply.  

 

(IBC Table 1017.2 Exit Access Travel Distance)  
 

Occupancy With Sprinkler System (feet) 

B 300 

R 200 

S-2 300 

 

(IBC 1014.3) Common path of egress travel in Business occupancy is limited to 75 feet.   
 All areas of the building comply. 

 
(IEBC 705.6)   In buildings of a Business, Storage, and Residential occupancy with a sprinkler system, 
the allowable length of a dead-end corridor is 50 feet.    

 All areas of the building comply.        
 
(248 CMR 2.10 Plumbing Code: Fixtures) The tables below outline the plumbing code requirements for 
fixture quantities.  Fixtures may be within a 300’ allowable travel distance and one floor above or below 
the occupied level. 
 

Use Group Rate for  Occupants Fixtures Required 

B (Business) Male: 1 toilet / 25  
Female: 1 toilet / 20 

53 occupants  
(27 Male/ 26 Female) 

Male:        2 Fixtures 
Female:    2 Fixtures 

R-2 (Residential) Male: 1 toilet/ 6 Female: 1 
/ 8 

6 occupants  
(3 Male / 3 Female) 

Male:        1 Fixtures 
Female:     1 Fixtures 

Employee, Non-
industrial 
(Storage, 
Apparatus Bay) 

Male: 1 toilet / 25  
Female: 1 toilet / 20 

35 occupants    
(18 Male / 18 Female) 

Male:         1 Fixtures 
Female:     2 Fixtures 

Total fixtures required: Male:         4 Fixtures 
Female:     5 Fixtures 

Total fixtures provided: Male:         2 Fixtures 
Female:     1 Fixtures 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 
   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

 

In the existing facility, there are a total of 2 toilet fixtures and these are not segregated for male and 
female staff.  The existing toilet fixture count does not meet the requirement above for staff population 
and none of the toilets fully comply with accessibility regulations.  Additionally, there are no toilets for 
public use. 
 
Accessible toilet facilities will be discussed in more detail in AAB Chapter 30, further on in this report. 
 
 

ACCESSIBILITY 
AAB Chapter 11 – Commercial Facilities 

(521 CMR 11.1) 

All Public Areas, Toilet rooms, and other areas accessible to the public within commercial facilities are 
required to be accessible.  This is expected to be revised in a pending release of the AAB to include 
employee areas and facilities. 

 Accessible transaction counter at First Floor Public Lobby is not provided. 

 Accessible male and female toilet rooms are not provided for public use. 

 
AAB 14 – Places of Assembly 
(AAB 14.2) Places of assembly are not provided in the existing building. 
 
AAB 19 – Recreational Facilities (Locker Rooms) 

(AAB 19.4) There are no public locker rooms and so are not reviewed.  Turn out gear storage is in the 
Apparatus Bay and presents a hazard. 

 
AAB 20 - Accessible Routes 
(AAB 20.1) Accessible routes within the building generally comply with requirements for width, passing 
space, protruding objects, headroom, etc.  

 Doorways reviewed do not provide the required clearance for accessibility.  
 
(AAB 20.6.1) Objects projecting from walls with their leading edges between 27 inches and 80 inches 
above the finished floor must not protrude more than 4 inches into walks, halls, corridors, passageways or 
aisle and must not have sharp edges.   

 There does not appear to be any non-compliant conditions. 

 
AAB 23.00 Parking and Passenger Loading Zones    

The parking lot is accessed directly from the street. There are no accessible public parking spaces 
provided onsite. 

      
AAB 24.00 – Ramps 

There are no ramps required on the interior of the building.  Please refer to the Landscape section of this 
study for information regarding site accessibility. 
 

AAB 25.00 – Entrances 

(AAB 25.1) All public entrances to the building must be accessible and be on an accessible route.  
 The public entrance to the building is at grade, pull side clearance on the exterior side 

appear to be compliant 
 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 
   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

AAB 26.00 – Doors and Doorways 

(AAB 26.1.1) All doorways shall provide a 32-inch clear width and accessible routes shall be a minimum 
of 36-inches clear width. 

 Many doorways in this building are typically 36-inches in width and do comply. 
 
AAB 26.6 – Maneuvering Clearances 

 Most of the doors throughout the building provide required pull and push clearances for 
accessible doors, except at toilet rooms and at Admin and Dormitory room. 
 

 
AAB 26.11 - Door Hardware 

With the exception of exterior doors, existing hardware throughout building is not compliant and 
replacement with lever-type hardware at all doors is recommended. 
 

AAB 26.1.2 - Exterior Exit Doors   

 Exterior exit door from the south exit accessed by steep ramp and is not compliant.    
 

 
 

AAB 30.00 – Public Toilet Rooms 

(AAB 30.1) Although not currently regulated by AAB, staff toilets will be regulated under the revised 
AAB to be published in the near future.  Access to staff toilet rooms is required under Federal ADA 
Guidelines.  Civilian staff, such as the Fire Chief’s Administrative Assistant, are not required to be 
ambulatory and must be provided with accessible facilities.  At a minimum, it is recommended that 
existing toilet rooms be reconstructed to provide single fixture toilet rooms with lockable doors for 
civilian staff use.  There are not any public toilet rooms currently at the fire station.  These should be 
provided for public use by visitors to the station. 
 

AAB 31.00 – Public Bathing Rooms 

(AAB 31.7) There are two shower stalls in the building as part of the staff toilet room provided for able-
bodied staff only and compliance is not required.  These stalls are not accessible but do have a changing 
area.  Consequently, if a staff of the opposite sex is taking a shower access to the toilet room adjacent to 
the dormitory area is not available. However, the plumbing code requires separate toilet/shower rooms for 
men and women; although unisex rooms are allowed for compliance with AAB, this is not compliant with 
the plumbing code.   
 
AAB 32.00 - Kitchens  

(AAB 32.1) Commercial kitchens are not regulated by the AAB and the Day Room kitchen is restricted to 
fire department staff only.   Although this kitchen is currently only used by fire department staff who are 
required to be ambulatory. If this is to be used by civilian staff, then access and accessible counter space 
must be provided.  
 

AAB 36.00 – Drinking Fountains   

(AAB 36.1.1) Drinking fountains are not provided within the building.  These must be provided in 
accordance with plumbing code requirements and must have 2 level spouts for ADA / AAB compliance. 
 
AAB 41.00 – Signage 

(AAB 41.00) Room signage with braille is missing throughout the building and must be provided at all 
‘permanent rooms and spaces’ as well as code required egress signage.  Directional signage, where 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 
   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

provided, shall be compliant.  Symbols of Accessibility are missing throughout building.  Where exit 
signs indicate an accessible route, if all routes are not accessible, these signs shall include the symbol of 
accessibility. 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR CODE COMPLIANCE: 

 

• Provide a sprinkler system throughout the building. 

 

Any renovation will likely require the entire building to be accessible. 

• Provide accessible ramp at all exits.  

• Provide all doors with accessible lever hardware 

• Toilet rooms are not accessible and does not have door and fixture clearances and fixtures do not 

comply.  An accessible route is not provided as the access to the toilet room is too narrow. 

• Toilet/shower room is not accessible as it does not have door and fixture clearances, fixtures do 

not comply, shower stall does not comply, and grab bars are not provided.  An accessible route is 

not provided. 

• Provide accessible drinking fountains. 

• All inaccessible doors should be modified to achieve minimum clearance on both sides of doors. 

• Provide AAB compliant signage throughout the building. 

 
 





 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING CONDITIONS REPORT 

   3.1  ARCHITECTURAL 

   3.2 STRUCTURAL SYSTEMS 

   3.3 PLUMBING SYSTEMS 

   3.4 MECHANICAL SYSTEMS 

   3.5 ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS 

    
 

  





 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

ARCHITECTURAL ANALYSIS OF EXISTING FACILITY 

OVERVIEW 

This Architectural Existing Facilities Evaluation of the Harvard Fire Station at 13 Ayer Road includes 

assessment of the construction and weather tightness of the exterior envelope and of the finish and 

function of interior elements.  General observations common to most areas of the facility are discussed 

and issues regarding individual spaces are further detailed, as necessary, in following reports provided by 

consultants with expertise in other engineering disciplines.  Also, although a review of the facility with 

regard to the Building Code is provided in a separate section of this Study, references to specific Code 

conditions are included in this section, as well as in sections by other engineering disciplines.  

Investigative demolition was not performed and comments in this report are based on visual observation 

only; and construction drawings of the building provided by the Town.  

According to the construction drawings, the current Fire Station was constructed in 1976 and is 5,750 

gross square feet in area on one floor. The building houses the Apparatus Bays, Reception/Dispatch 

Office, Administration Offices, bunk room, kitchen/Day Room for Firefighters, and mechanical rooms.   

The Fire Station consists of an original structure with no additions or expansions. The building and its 

four (4) apparatus bays face Ayer Road to the east.  The Apparatus Bays are primarily back-in only, with 

one bay being drive through. The site is essentially entirely paved on the east and north sides with 

minimal space to abutting lot line to the south.  Unassigned parking spaces are located to the north and 

east of the building. 

 

EXTERIOR ENVELOPE 

Exterior Walls 

Based on the construction drawings and visual observation, the original building is constructed of load 

bearing masonry walls on the exterior.  The sloped roof is framed with steel trusses and the flat roofs are 

framed with steel joists.  

The exterior envelope of the building appears to consist predominately of double wyth masonry cavity wall 

construction, consisting of a 4” brick veneer with 6” &  8” concrete masonry block (cmu) with minimal air 

cavity. The brick veneer and cmu are set in a running bond pattern.  All walls are uninsulated and cavity wall 

weeps are readily visible at window heads and harder to find at the base of wall.   

The existing exterior walls in the building are not constructed up to current code requirements for insulation 

value and moisture mitigation.  We recommend that the wall construction be revised to provide proper weeps, 

vents, air and vapor barrier and insulation to the wall assembly to bring it up to code compliance.  The brick 

veneer itself is generally in very good condition.  There are few locations where cracks, failing mortar, and 

failing caulking.  Exterior steel and cast stone lintels over windows and doors are generally in good condition.   



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

Exterior Windows  

The exterior wood windows are true divided lite with single pane glass.  Aluminum storm windows have 

been added to help with energy efficiency. While these windows are in good condition, they do not comply 

with current State energy code requirements.  The wood frames need to be scraped, repainted and the 

perimeter caulking needs to be replaced. 

       

Exterior Doors     

There are five exterior man doors in the fire station: one at the main entrance one at the firefighter’s 

dayroom/kitchen, one directly into the apparatus bay near the administrative & bunk rooms, and one each 

into the mechanical and work rooms.  All doors are painted wood in hollow metal frames.  They are generally 

in good condition and need to be scraped and painted.  None of these doors has accessible hardware or code 

compliant level areas at the front approach.  None of the doors have been outfitted with a “crash-bars”; 

though many of the doors are typically equipped with lever handles.  

               

Overhead doors to the apparatus bays are the same size.  Facing Ayer Road, there are four sectional overhead 

doors that are 12’-0” wide and 12’-0” tall.  These doors are too small for current fire apparatus and evidence 

of the rear door frame having been scraped by the engines pulling in and out of the bay.  It was also reported 

that a number of years ago an apparatus struck the front of the building requiring the front of the apparatus 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

bay to be rebuilt.  Compounding the problem with the width of the bay door is that three of the bays on the 

front of the building are back-in bays which require the apparatus to back in from the apron. 

       

Roofing  

Steep sloped roofing is asphalt shingles.  The asphalt shingles appear to be in good condition although 

areas of moss was observed on the south side.   

 

Step flashing at roof to wall locations appears to be in good condition, however, the face is not sealed in a 

reglet and water can readily infiltrate the roof and building.  

       



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

Caulking at mechanical curbs was observed to be failing and needs to be replaced.  

 

Waves in the shingles were observed one the north side.  It appears that the roof deck may have begun to 

delaminate.  Further investigation is required.   

 

Low slope roofing is a single ply membrane roofing that appears to be EPDM on tapered rigid insulation, 

which is nearing the end of its useful life.  At the single ply roof areas, patches were observed and the 

roof was soft and spongy indicating water saturated insulation trapped beneath the membrane.  The 

moisture is a problem which could lead to the growth of mold and mildew.  In these spots, standing water 

was also observed. Additionally, there were a few patches observed. 

       



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

There are no gutters or downspouts on the building, allowing the rainwater to shed onto the asphalt and 

walking surfaces.  At a minimum, gutters and down spouts should be provided above all walking surfaces 

to prevent ice buildup which will cause a walking hazard in the winter months 

Overall, the exterior shell of the building is in good condition and in minimal repair is needed. 

 

INTERIOR BUILDING ELEMENTS 

Interior Finishes 

Walls:  Interior wall finishes are mostly painted masonry, with some painted drywall/plaster in occupied 

spaces. These surfaces appear to be in good condition but require some patching at gouged/water 

damaged finishes and corners. Wood trim is generally in good condition but exhibit ware and need to be 

painted. 

Flooring: The concrete floor slab on grade in the Apparatus Bays is painted and appears to be be in good 

condition.  Finish flooring in offices is carpet and is in poor condition. In the toilet rooms, the floor 

appears 12”x12” vinyl tile and in poor condition.  The shower area is ceramic porcelain tile and in poor 

condition.  The kitchen, dayroom, bunks and corridors are also 12”x12” vinyl in poor condition.       

 

Ceilings:  Ceilings in most of the building, including the Apparatus Bay, are a 2x4 suspended acoustical 

tile system with surface or recessed mounted lighting fixtures.   In general, most of the ceiling grids 

exhibit signs of age or rust in some locations, and tiles exhibit physical damage from water/moisture. 

Moisture problems and/or leaks from the roof system are the cause of this damage.   The lighting seems 

inadequate in general and the light fixtures are in poor condition. Refer to the electrical section of this 

report for more information. 

       

 

 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

Interior doors and windows: Throughout the building, original doors (36” wide), are varnished flush 

wood doors in painted hollow metal frames and window casings and sills are wood. Doors to and from 

the Apparatus Bay are flush hollow metal with hollow metal frames, are exhibiting ware and need to be 

painted.  Most interior doors have doorknobs and have not been outfitted with ADA compliant lever-style 

handles.   The doors hardware is worn and will require new hardware and refinishing.  Doors and 

windows are worn and in fair condition. 

     

Signage, Miscellaneous Accessories and Equipment:  Room signage is almost nonexistent.  Any 

addition or renovation would require the installation of signage with braille to comply with ADA. Fire 

extinguishers are located sporadically throughout the building but appear to be inadequate in number. 

Window treatments in the building consist of manually operated horizontal blinds, shades and curtains or 

none at all. All are in fair to poor condition and need to be replaced. 

Kitchen/Dayroom: Located in the rear of the building and utilizing painted cmu and gypsum walls, with 

vinyl composition tile flooring and suspended acoustical tile ceiling with recessed and surface mounted 

lights. All finishes are in fair condition and should to be replaced. Cabinets and counter tops exhibit some 

wear.  Appliances appear to be in good condition.   

            



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

     

Toilet Rooms: The toilet rooms utilize painted gypsum walls, with vinyl composition tile flooring and 

suspended acoustical tile ceiling. 

The shower room adjacent to the bunk room utilizes ceramic tile walls walls, with ceramic tile flooring. 

Shower compartments have ceramic tile walls and suspended acoustical ceiling tile.  All of these finishes 

are worn and are at the end of their useful life.  

The fixtures do not meet ADA requirements.  The sinks do not have insulated drain piping or approved 

lever style faucets handles and thus are non-complaint. The toilets do not have proper grab bars and or 

clearances.  Additionally, there are no separate toilet/shower facilities for male and female use. 

Our recommendation would be to execute a total renovation of these spaces. The fixtures, partitions and 

accessories should be replaced with new. 

       

 

PROGRAM COMPONENTS 

Communications Center: The dispatch center/radio room does not comply with NFPA 1221 which sets 

the design standard for emergency dispatch centers. This code requires two-hour fire separation from the 

remainder of the building, protection against civil unrest and an isolated air handling system among many 

other requirements. Neither an isolated air handling system nor two-hour fire separation assemblies were 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

not evident. Additionally, this room appears to be used for a variety of other programmatic functions 

including report preparation and multi-purpose room. These functions are not conducive to providing an 

appropriate environment for dispatchers to communicate with citizens in emergency circumstances. 

         

Bunk Rooms: There is one bunk room with bunk beds to sleep six (6), but is currently used for storage of 

miscellaneous materials.  They utilize painted cmu and gypsum walls, suspended 2x4 acoustical tile 

ceiling in a metal ceiling grid with surface mounted lights and VCT floor tile.  All the finishes are in poor 

condition and need to be replaced. 

       

Apparatus Bays: The apparatus bays utilize painted cmu walls, suspended acoustical tile ceiling with 

surface mounted lights and stained/painted concrete floors.  All of the finishes are in fair to poor 

condition.  The ceiling exhibits signs of water damage, most likely the result of current and/or past roof 

leaks.  The overhead door openings are too narrow & short and barely allow passage of the current 

apparatus.  The circulation space around the apparatus is too narrow per recognized fire station facility 

design standards.   The apparatus doors are insulated metal clad pre-finished sectional overhead doors, 

which were installed in 2019 and are in like new condition.  The vehicle exhaust system was installed in 

2004, and is in excellent condition.  Additionally, the bays house the turnout gear lockers, 

decontamination area, hose/supply storage and work areas.  All these spaces should be in their own 

spaces. 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

          

Storage Facilities:  There appears to be inadequate storage facilities for archival records, training 

materials, department equipment, and supplies. 

        

 

Recommendations: 

1. Replace all flat roofing with new EPDM or PVC roof membranes.  Provide reglets with 

counterflashing at all building wall interfaces. 

2. An interior, insulated wall with a vapor barrier should be provided on the entire station to upgrade 

the exterior wall to current energy conservation standards.   

3. Flooring finishes should be replaced. 

4. Replace acoustical ceilings and repaint all drywall ceilings and soffits.  

5. All wall surfaces must be patched and repainted. 

6. Install new aluminum gutters and downspouts with adequate capacity to provide  continuous free 

flow of water to grade.   



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

7. It is our recommendation that a comprehensive survey of hazardous materials be conducted.  The 

scope of the survey should include asbestos, lead paint, mercury and PBC’s. 

 

Summary: 

Below are examples of non-compliant code or safety standard, conditions observed at the existing 

facilities.  A complete list is included in the study report.  These conditions expose the Fire Department 

staff to safety hazards and the Town to liability. 

 

1. Building Code: 

a. Structurally the facilities do not meet current seismic (earthquake) design and would 

likely suffer major damage in a seismic event, a situation in which demand for 

emergency response would peak. 

b. There are no sprinkler systems to protect life safety and apparatus in case of fire. 

 

2. Plumbing Code: 

a. Fixtures do not meet Federal water conservation requirements 

b. Fixtures are not handicapped accessible 

 

3. HVAC Code: 

a. Ductwork is too small. 

b. Non-compliant amount of fresh air changes (insufficient ventilation per Code). 

 

4. Electrical Code: 

a. Most systems (lighting, power, emergency lighting, and fire alarm) no longer meet code 

requirements or safety standards. 

 

 

5. ADA/MAAB (handicapped accessibility) 

a. No public toilets.  Public is forced to use existing staff toilet/shower/locker facilities 

which are not handicapped accessible (turning radius’, reach limits, thresholds….)  

b. No separate toilet/shower/locker facilities for female fire fighters or staff. 

 

All of these issues, and others identified in the ‘Code Review’ & “Existing Conditions Survey’ sections of 

the study will need to be addressed in any addition/renovation or new construction recommendation.  

 

 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING CONDITIONS REPORT 

   3.1  ARCHITECTURAL 

   3.2 STRUCTURAL SYSTEMS 

   3.3 PLUMBING SYSTEMS 

   3.4 MECHANICAL SYSTEMS 

   3.5 ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS 

 
 

  





 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

Structural 

 

Existing Facility Evaluation 
 

Existing Fire Department Building 

 

The structural components of the existing building are as follows: 

 

Existing Roof System 

 

The existing roof is constructed of open web sloped steel roof joists that are supported on load bearing 

masonry walls and steel beams.  There are three steel columns in the middle of the apparatus bay that 

supports the center main ridge which the steel roof joists are supported from.  The roof decking is a 

Tectum roof deck planking with a plywood nailer overlay to allow shingles to be nailed to.  The roof 

decking plank spans perpendicular to the roof joists. 

 

Existing Bearing Walls 

 

The bearing walls are comprised of 6” and 8” concrete masonry units (cmu) that are mortared in place.  

Per the existing drawings there is only horizontal joint reinforcing wire in the walls except for the 

masonry beam that spans the rear apparatus bay drive isle wall opening.  The exterior masonry wall also 

have a cavity and brick veneer.  Normally the brick veneer is not a load bearing building component 

however in this building there are areas in which the brick veneer supports bearing plates for the steel 

roof framing.  The main masonry bearing wall is 6” in width.  At the top of the wall the masonry wall 

changes to two courses of 8” cmu that is grouted and is reinforced however this top continuous bond 

beam is not mechanically tied or doweled to the lower 6” cmu load bearing wall.  This detail can be 

observed on the existing drawing sheet S-5 and when viewing the top of the masonry wall in the 

apparatus bay.  When reviewing the exterior wall condition it was found that some of the existing 

window sills were loose and appear to have no bond to the supporting brick. 

 

Existing Foundation System 

 

The existing foundation is not visible at this time thus the following description is solely based upon 

what is observed on the existing building drawings.  The existing foundation is comprised of typical 

cast in place concrete spread and continuous footings of various widths with a 10” wide cast in place 

concrete wall.  The continuous wall footings area unreinforced and the walls have only (2)-#5 

continuous top and bottom reinforcing bars.  The walls are not doweled or mechanically connected to 

the footings. 

 

Addition and Renovation 

 

One concept is that there will be an addition and renovation to the existing fire station building.  The 

following are structural items that will need to be addressed if an addition and renovation moves 

forward. 

 

Given the Massachusetts State Building Code this building would need to be upgraded to meet the 

building code that is in place at this time.  Given what was observed and the existing drawings this 

building would require substantial upgrades to accomplish this task.  The following items are the most 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

significant structural building elements that would need to be upgraded if an addition and renovation 

design was to move forward. 

 

1. The 6” existing bearing walls are unreinforced and would need to upgraded.  The existing 6” 

un-reinforced masonry wall has very low shear resistance when the walls are used in a bearing 

shear wall configuration as they are in this building. 

2. The connection of the 8” continuous bond beam to the lower 6” load bearing wall interface 

would need to be addressed.  Refer to photo 10 attached below. 

3. The front (east) elevation has large garage door openings with only 3’ wide masonry wall 

pilasters in between each door thus there is very low lateral resistance in this end wall. 

 

The new addition portion of the building can be constructed from the following structural systems. 

 

Existing Sub-Grade Preparation: 

 

At this time a geotechnical report has not yet been generated.  However, based upon the foundation 

system used for the existing fire station that is on the same property, standard conventional frost wall 

walls and spread footings were used thus it could be assumed that the soil subgrade is suitable for this 

foundation system at the proposed new building.   

 

The exterior building perimeter frost wall footings could be at least 2’ wide and 1’ thick with building 

spread footings at least 3’x3’x1’ in size.  Based upon the existing drawings foundation details the soil 

bearing capacity would most likely be between 3000-4000 psf.  This value along with other specific soil 

property values will be fully quantified in a geotechnical report. 

 

Once a full geotechnical report has been provided to the design team the foundation systems might have 

to be revisited to reflect the recommendations that are to be set forth by the geotechnical engineer. 

 

Foundations:   

 

The new building will be comprised of perimeter concrete frost walls with interior spread footings.  At 

this time there is no basement space thus the perimeter foundation walls will only need to go down to 

the minimum frost depth of 4’ or deeper if required per the recommendations of the geotechnical 

engineer.  The interior floor will consist of a 4” concrete slab on grade in the main offices area a 8” 

thick concrete slab if new apparatus bays are constructed in the new addition foot print area.  The slab 

on grade in the apparatus bay will be pitched to interior trench drains.  If there are interior wood or 

masonry load bearing walls there will be 12” deep x 24” wide haunched slab/footings reinforced with 

(4)-#4 continuous bars under these interior bearing walls. 

 

The concrete for the walls, footings and slab on grade will be 3500 psi compressive strength concrete.  

The slab on grade will have a 15 mil poly vapor retarder and the concrete mix will contain the Barrier 

One moisture transmission retarding admixture.  The concrete steel (rebar) reinforcing will be typical 

A615 or A706 grade 60 ksi material.  The 4” concrete slab on grade shall contain 6x6 W2.1/W2.1 

welded wire fabric reinforcing.  The 8” concrete slab on grade in the apparatus bay will be reinforced 

with #4 at 12” o.c. each way and 6x6 x W2.1/W2.1 welded wire fabric reinforcing over the radiant heat 

piping.  The #4 slab reinforcing will be set on continuous chairs with the radiant heat piping set on top 

of the #4’s and the 6x6 W2.1/W2.1 welded wire fabric set over the radiant heat piping. 

 

 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

Second Floor Structure 

 

Given the limited building site area the addition will most likely have a second floor.  The second floor 

construction will be as follows.  The second floor will be comprised of a 5” concrete slab on metal 

decking (1 ½”-20 gage galvanized composite steel decking with 3 ½” of normal weight concrete).  The 

floor slab will be reinforced with 6x6 W2.1/W2.1 welded wire fabric.  The floor slab system will be 

supported on steel wide flange beams and columns down to the foundation level. 

 

Roof Structure:   

 

The new addition roof will most likely be a pitched style roof arrangement that will be created by using 

wood pitched top chord roof trusses that are supported on wide flange steel beams or concrete masonry 

bearing walls.  In some of the taller truss space areas there could be the need for attic style roof trusses 

to create an attic service walkway to allow for the servicing of any mechanical units or filters that will 

be installed above the ceiling in the open truss space.  The steel beams will be supported on steel 

columns down to the concrete foundations at grade.  The roof diaphragm will be comprised of plywood 

roof sheathing that will be attached to the wood roof trusses.  The insulation and roofing finish system 

will be called out by the architect and will cover the roof decking to create a weather tight assembly. 

 

If a new apparatus bay is scheduled to be constructed typically these bays are tall and require a large 

open structure to allow for the tall fire truck clearance.  In this area of the building the roof could 

constructed from HSS (hollow structural sections, i.e. steel tubes) trusses that will clear span the front 

to back direction of the apparatus bay.  Spanning between the trusses will be either steel beam or steel 

open web joist infill beams.  1 ½” deep-20 gage galvanized wide rib steel decking will span between 

each roof beam or joist thus creating the roof diaphragm.    The insulation and roofing finish system 

will be called out by the architect and will be placed over the steel roof decking to create a weather tight 

assembly. 

 

Steel Framing / Wind and Seismic Lateral System: 

 

The structural steel will be comprised of HSS tube steel columns with wide flange steel girder and infill 

beams.  The lateral system will most likely consist of moment frames or brace frames to create rigidity 

in the building framework.   

 

The steel materials used shall be as follows:   

 

HSS Tube Sections ASTM A500 Grade B Fy=46 ksi 

Plates, Angles, Channels, Solid and Flat Bars ASTM A36 Fy=36 ksi,  

Wide Flange Beams ASTM A992 Gr 50 ksi 

Anchor Rods ASTM F1554 Gr 55 ksi 

 

All structural steel to be shop primed painted.  Any exterior exposed angle, beam or plate lintels to be 

hot dip galvanized.  The exterior exposed carport beams and columns will be prime painted, and finish 

painted per the architect specifications. 

 

For additional information regarding the existing fire station refer to the photos below. 

 

 

 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Aerial View Photo 1 

 

 

 
 

East Elevation Photo 2 

Typical masonry 

load bearing walls 

Slope steel joist 

roof system 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

 

 
 

West Elevation Photo 3 

 

 
 

South Elevation Photo 4 

 

Typical masonry 

load bearing walls 

Precast window 

lintels typical 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

 
 

North Elevation Photo 4 

 

 
 

Existing precast lintels and sills Photo 5 

 

 

Precast window 

sill and lintel 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

 
 

Sloped roof joists and Tectum roof decking Photo 6 

 

 

 
 

Load bearing masonry wall Photo 7 

 

 

 

Existing open web 

steel roof joists 

Tectum roof decking 

Transition between 6” 

and 8” masonry wall, 

refer to photo 10 below 

6” load bearing 

masonry wall 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

 
 

Masonry beam over rear bay wall opening Photo 8 

 

 
 

Interior column inside the apparatus bay Photo 9 

 

 

Reinforced 

masonry beam 

Typical steel column 

support typical of 3 

locations inside the 

apparatus bay 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

 
 

Existing 8” masonry stacked on top of 6” Photo 10 

 

 

 

 

 

Should the proposed scope of the project change the above structural narrative should be adjusted to 

reflect these modifications.    

 

8” CMU upper wall stacked 

and not mechanically 

connected to the 6” CMU 

below 

The 4” brick veneer is used 

to support vertical loading 

of the low roof 





 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING CONDITIONS REPORT 

   3.1  ARCHITECTURAL 

   3.2 STRUCTURAL SYSTEMS 

   3.3 PLUMBING SYSTEMS 

   3.4 MECHANICAL SYSTEMS 

   3.5 ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS 

 
 

  





 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

PLUMBING 

Existing Facility Evaluation 
 

1. Plumbing: 

a. The existing building plumbing systems consist of the following: 

1) Water Service – The existing water service enters the building in the Work Shop. A water 

meter could not be located. Currently there is an existing gate valve for the main shut-off. 

2) Sanitary System – The sanitary piping is cast iron piping which runs underground.   

3) Domestic Hot Water – The domestic water heater is located in the mechanical room.  The 

water heater is a Maytag 50 gallon, 40,000 btu gas fired water heater.  The water heater was 

manufactured in May of 2005, and is in fair/poor condition.  Hot and cold water piping in the 

boiler room is not insulated. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Hot Water Tank 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

4) Fuel Source – The natural gas 

service/meter assembly is located on the 

exterior of the building. A 2” low 

pressure gas line enters the building at 

the mechanical room. The gas line 

serves the heating boilers and water 

heater located in the mechanical Room. 

No deficiencies were observed on the 

gas piping. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5) Fixtures – The plumbing fixtures are not ADA compliant.  Toilets are tank type floor 

mounted.  The locker rooms contain one (1) shower in each room (male and female).  The 

plumbing fixtures should all be replaced with low flow, ADA compliant fixtures, per current 

Code. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Gas Service/Meter 

 
 

Plumbing Fixtures 
Shower 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

Recommendations 

1. The plumbing piping systems serving the building appear to be original to the building and are 

past their useful life expectancy. Domestic water piping can be expected to show signs of leaking 

or overall failure due to age. Plumbing fixtures appear to be original to the building and are past 

their useful life expectancy. Fixtures need to be updated to accommodate ADA requirements. 

Low flow fixtures, flush valves, faucets and showers should be installed to conserve water and 

comply with current code. 

2. The existing 50 gallon gas fired water heater should be removed and replaced with a new gas 

fired, high efficiency water heater. A complete hot water supply and return system would be 

required to meet current code. 

3. The existing sanitary system does not appear to have any major issues based on discussions with 

facility personal.  

 

 

 

 

 





 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING CONDITIONS REPORT 

   3.1  ARCHITECTURAL 

   3.2 STRUCTURAL SYSTEMS 

   3.3 PLUMBING SYSTEMS 

   3.4 MECHANICAL SYSTEMS 

   3.5 ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS 

 
 

  





 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

MECHANICAL 

Existing Facility Evaluation 
 

1. Mechanical (HVAC) Systems: 

a. The HVAC system serving the building is a heating only hot water system consisting of a boiler, 

pumps, piping, hot water base board, and unit heaters. The boiler, pumps, and main distribution 

piping is located in the mechanical room. 

1) Boiler was manufactured by Lochinvar and is approximately 5 to 7 years old. Name plate 

information with model number and capacity could not be located. Boiler appears to be in  

2) good condition. 

3) Primary and secondary pumps appear to be in fair condition. Manufacturer, model number 

and age unknown. 

4) Main piping distribution in the boiler room is in fair condition. Piping insulation is missing in 

many locations. 

5) Distribution piping located above the ceiling throughout the building is in fair condition. 

Piping insulation is in disrepair and missing in many locations. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

b. Heating elements throughout the building are in poor condition. 

  

Boiler Pump and Piping 



HARVARD FIRE STATION

FEASIBILITY STUDY

January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

1) Baseboard heaters throughout the building are damaged and covers are missing in several

locations. Heating elements are very dirty and covered with debris. Control valves and

thermostats appear to be operational but are in poor condition.

2) Unit heaters throughout the building are in poor condition with access doors missing or

damaged. Heating elements are very dirty and covered with debris. Control valves and

thermostats appear to be operational but are in poor condition.

3) Roof exhaust fans are in varies states of operation and disrepair.

a) Bathroom exhaust fans appear to be working but are in poor condition.

b) Kitchen exhaust fan appears to be operating but at very low airflow. Fan is in poor condition.

c) Multi-purpose room exhaust fan is operating but in poor condition.

d) Work room exhaust fan is not operational.

e) Apparatus bay CO/NO2 emergency exhaust fan is not operational.

f) Living area exhaust fan operation unknown but is in poor condition.

Baseboard Unit Heater 



HARVARD FIRE STATION

FEASIBILITY STUDY

January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

4) Plymovent system is in disrepair and is not operational. System capture hoses are torn and

rendering the system unusable.  Subsequent to this observation, repairs were made and

system is fully operational.

Roof Fans 

Plymovent System Hose 



HARVARD FIRE STATION

FEASIBILITY STUDY

January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

5) Existing Apparatus bay hot water unit heaters are in poor condition. Operational status of the

unit heaters is unknown.

6) Air conditioning is provided to the Multi-purpose room and Bunk room with through wall

window type units. Units are in poor condition.

Unit Heater 

Window Unit 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

Recommendations 

1. Apparatus bay is unsafe and requires the following.. 

a. Installation of a gas detection system with CO/NO2 sensors and control panel. 

b. Repair of the existing Apparatus bay exhaust system and integration into the new gas 

detection panel. 

c. Installation of make-up air louver to work in conjunction with Apparatus bay exhaust system 

and new gas detection control panel. 

2. The building has no fresh air systems to properly pressurize the occupied spaces keeping them 

positive to the Apparatus bay. In this case the occupied spaces exhaust fans are drawing air from 

the Apparatus bay bringing CO/NO2 gasses through the occupied spaces. Two existing CO 

detectors are located in the sleeping area and corridor, however no NO2 detection was noted. 

Recommend at a minimum adding proper CO/NO2 detection throughout the building. 

3. Repair and/or replace existing exhaust fans as required. 

4. Repair, clean and/or replace existing heating elements and covers. 

5. Repair existing piping insulation throughout the building. 

6. Mechanical room has no heat. It was reported on site that this space has pipe freezing issues on 

cold winter days. Recommend adding heat to the mechanical space. 

 





HARVARD FIRE STATION

FEASIBILITY STUDY

January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

EXISTING CONDITIONS REPORT 

3.1 ARCHITECTURAL 

3.2 STRUCTURAL SYSTEMS 

3.3 PLUMBING SYSTEMS 

3.4 MECHANICAL SYSTEMS 

3.5 ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS 





HARVARD FIRE STATION

FEASIBILITY STUDY

January 3, 2020 - FIANL 

ELECTRICAL

Power Distribution System 

1. The building is served by an underground electrical service fed via an existing utility pole which is

located adjacent to the southeast corner of the building.

2. The electrical service is rated 300 amperes, 120/240 volt, 1 phase, 3 wire.  The main disconnect

switch, utility C/T cabinet and meter, automatic transfer switch/generator, and the building electrical

panel are located within the building’s mechanical-electrical room.  The electric service conductors

are routed from the main disconnect switch via the automatic transfer switch.  This arrangement

connects the panel and all associated loads to the generator (except the Plymovent system), however

the standby generator can only provide 104 amperes of standby power.

3. The building is equipped with a single double-tub electrical panel which serves all loads/equipment

(except the Plymovent system).  The panelboard appears to be original to the building’s construction

and currently does not have space for the installation of additional circuit breakers (panel is full).  It

Utility Riser Pole 

Electrical Equipment in Mechanical-Electrical Room 



HARVARD FIRE STATION

FEASIBILITY STUDY

January 3, 2020 - FIANL 

was noted that the panels code required working clearances are impeded by the automatic transfer 

switch and the standby generator. 

Standby Power System 

1. The building is equipped with a Kohler Natural Gas fueled standby generator rated at 25kW/25kVA,

120/240 volt, 1 phase, 3 wire and is equipped with a single 100A output circuit breaker.  The

generator and the associated automatic transfer switch are located within the mechanical-electrical

room and is capable of providing the facility with 100 amperes of standby power.  The generator and

automatic transfer switch appear to be original building equipment, are in fair condition and have

reached the end of their anticipated service life.  It was noted that this equipment does not have the

code required working clearances.

2. The existing generator’s output rating is 104 amperes and does not have the capacity to provide

standby power to all building equipment/loads simultaneously.

3. It was noted that a separate enclosed circuit breaker serving the Plymovent System is labeled “wired

to street side of generator” and therefore cannot be powered by the generator with its current

arrangement.

Generator 

Plymovent System Circuit Breaker 



HARVARD FIRE STATION

FEASIBILITY STUDY

January 3, 2020 - FIANL 

4. The existing standby power system does not meet present code requirements with respect to fire

separation or fuel source.

Lighting 

1. The existing lighting system within the building consists of a mixture of fluorescent and

incandescent fixtures, most of which appear to be original and have been upgraded with new T-8

lamps and ballasts or LED replacement lamps.  Recessed 2′x4′ and surface mounted 1′x4′

fluorescent lensed fixtures serve the day room, control room, and office areas.  Surface mounted

1′x4′ x 1′x8′ fluorescent fixtures with lenses are provided in the Apparatus Bay and various

surface/recessed fixtures are located in bathrooms and bunk room.  Lighting controls within the

building are provided by manual toggle switches.  Several light fixtures within the Apparatus Bay

were noted to have cracked, broken or missing lenses.

2. Exterior lighting is provided by building mounted floodlight fixtures controlled by photocells or

integral motion sensors.  Recessed incandescent lenses fixture are also present above each

entrance door and surface mounted decorative fixtures are located on the front of the building.

An additional floodlight fixture located on a utility pole was also noted.

3. Exit signs with integral battery backup have been provided at each egress door.  Code compliant

dedicated emergency lighting has not been provided within the facility.

4. In general, all lighting is in fair condition.

Devices and Branch Circuit Wiring 

1. In general, there are grounding type duplex

receptacles installed in all areas with GFCI

receptacles located where required by code.

The devices appear to be in average

condition.

2. Branch circuit wiring observed consists of

conductors installed in conduit or type MC

cable.  An extension cord is being used to

serve the fire boat storage structure located

behind the Fire Station which is a code

violation as extension cords cannot be used

as a substitute for fixed wiring.

Extension Cord to Boat Storage Structure 



HARVARD FIRE STATION

FEASIBILITY STUDY

January 3, 2020 - FIANL 

Fire Alarm System 

1. The existing fire alarm system is an addressable system as manufactured by Silent Knight and is

connected to a Sig-Com radio master box for system monitoring.  Device coverage includes

manual pull stations at each egress door and smoke/heat detector coverage throughout the

building.  Fire alarm notification devices are provided in main circulation areas, bathrooms, bunk

room, and on the building exterior.  Separate CO detectors have been installed in the bunk room

and adjacent corridor.

2. The notification device installed within the bunk room does not appear to have a low frequency

type sounder that is required by present code.

3. In general, all fire alarm system devices and components appear to be in good condition.

Security 

1. The building does not have security cameras or a security system.

Telecommunications 

1. The telephone and data services to the

building originate at the utility pole

located at the southeast corner of the

building.  Tel/data service cables are

routed overhead from this pole into the

building’s hose room and is distributed

from this location to rack mounted

equipment in the bunk room.

Building Fire Alarm Equipment 

Tel/Data Equipment Rack 



HARVARD FIRE STATION

FEASIBILITY STUDY

January 3, 2020 - FIANL 

2. The building’s tel/data equipment rack is located in the southwest corner of the bunk room along

with radio transmission filtering/equipment.  Central fire alarm monitoring/receiving equipment

for the Town’s master boxes is located within the control room.

3. In general, tel/data system wiring appears to be adequate, although installed in a somewhat

haphazard manner in a few locations.

Control Room Fire Alarm Monitoring Equipment 



HARVARD FIRE STATION

FEASIBILITY STUDY

January 3, 2020 - FIANL 

Recommendations

1. Remove existing standby generator and associated automatic transfer switch and replace with

new equipment.  New generator recommended to be diesel fueled and be pad mounted with

weatherproof enclosure and fuel tank.  Generator to be sized to support entire facility with new

automatic transfer switch.

2. Install self-contained emergency battery light fixtures throughout all common areas and

bathrooms to comply with code requirements.  For Life-Safety lighting, include the exterior or

each egress door.

3. Remove and replace existing panelboard with new equipment to provide adequate space for all

present and anticipated future equipment loads plus additional spare capacity.  A new electric

service with additional capacity may be required if significant building expansion is anticipated.

4. Remove all existing fluorescent/incandescent light fixtures and replace with new LED fixtures for

better performance, to reduce maintenance and maximize energy efficiency.

5. Provide occupancy/vacancy room lighting controls and/or time based lighting controls to comply

with present energy code requirements.

6. Provide fire alarm system low frequency notification appliances in all sleeping areas.

7. Remove extension cord to boat storage structure and install permanent power by a code approved

method (conduit & wire).



HARVARD FIRE STATION

FEASIBILITY STUDY

January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

SPACE NEEDS 





MITCHELL ASSOCIATES A R C H I T E C T S

• E M E R G E N C Y  S E R V I C E S  F A C I L I T I E S •

29 Thacher Park Road  Voorheesville, NY 12186 (518) 765-4571 Fax (518) 765-2950

E-mail: Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com  Copyright Mitchell Associates Architects 2018 Web Site: Mitchell-Architects.com

Fire Station Program Document 

Project Name: Harvard Fire Station 

1st Program Meeting Date: 6/26/19 

Printout Date: August 30, 2019      Filename: Harvard Fire Program.docx 

This document is not meant to be limited to an inventory of what you currently have.  

Indicate what you currently need for proper operations and try to forecast what you will need for the 

future. 

A  General Information 

A1. Staffing level at station:  total: 30   active: 28    female: 2 All are On-Call 

A2. Future Possible: Anticipate some paid staff within the life of the building 

A3. Typical Turnout: 11 

A4. Number of Shifts: NA 

A5. Number of calls/year at station: 375 FD, 375 Ambulance, 8 structure fires 

A6. Number of stations: 3  

A6.1. Main station (1976) 

A6.2. Small 1860’s garage behind Town Hall 

.6.2.1. Forestry truck 

.6.2.2. SAFE materials 

A6.3. Still River substation (1948) 

.6.3.1. 2nd forestry truck (Class A pumper) 

.6.3.2. Reserve engine (looking to dispose of this) 

.6.3.3. Antique (1929 Seagrave, which runs in parades) 

A7. Administrative Staffing: Three – Chief, Recent full time, part time administrator (8 hrs/week) 

A8. Building Committee: 

Meeting Attendance/Date: 6/26 7/25 8/15 8/22 8/29 

A5.1. Chief Sicard 

A5.2. ______________ 

A5.3. ______________ 

A5.4. ______________ 

A5.5.  _____________ 

A5.6.  _____________ 

A5.7. Kevin Witzell  

A5.8. Bob Mitchell 

A9. Type of entity: 

A9.1. Municipality: Department 

A10. Number of Companies or Departments involved:  One 

A10.1. Names:  Harvard Fire Department 

mailto:Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com
mailto:mail@mra-architects.com


Harvard Fire Station Program Document 8/30/2019, Page 2 of 19 

29 Thacher Park Road  Voorheesville, NY 12186 (518) 765-4571 Fax (518) 765-2950

E-mail: Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com  Copyright Mitchell Associates Architects 2017 Web Site: Mitchell-Architects.com

B  Functional Activities in Building 

B1. Types of response: 

B1.1. Fire: X 

B1.2. EMS: X (1/3 of firefighters are on ambulance squad, which is currently in another building) 

B1.3. Heavy Rescue: X (No trench or high angle) 

B1.4. HAZ MAT: X (First responder only) 

B1.5. Water Rescue: X (Boat and surface ice) 

B1.6. Ambulance: Not yet 

B2. Training activities in building: 

B2.1. Bail out, confined space extrication, mask confidence, entanglement, etc. 

B3. Training activities on site: 

B3.1. All aspects except live fire, including roof prop and car cutting 

B4. Training activities for community: 

B4.1. Home escape planning for 1st to 3rd graders 

B4.2. Lego models – winner gets breakfast at the fire station and a ride to school on the fire truck.  Winning 

class gets a trophy 

B4.3. S.A.F.E. – Student Awareness Fire Education 

B4.4. Fire Explorer Post 

B5. Training activities on site: 

B5.1. All aspect 

B6. Fuel Filling Station:  No 

B7. Other uses of apparatus bay: 

B7.1. Inside training 

B7.2. Social events: 400 people at turkey raffle 

B7.3. Craft fairs: None anticipated 

B8. Sleeping Over: 

B8.1. Now 

.8.1.1. Intermittent, short duration: Storm Coverage 

.8.1.2. Long term: None 

B8.2. Future 

.8.2.1. Intermittent, short duration: Bunk rooms 

.8.2.2. Long term: Within the 100-year life of the building, live-in staff will exist 

B9. Standing by: Yes 

B9.1. Will other fire companies park their apparatus in the bay under certain circumstances: Yes 

.9.1.1. Describe: Mutual Aid 

.9.1.2. Is their access to the building to be limited:  Yes 

.9.1.3. Describe: Apparatus bay, radio room, ready room 

B10. Emergency Shelter: 

B10.1. Who stays in building: Firefighters & emergency personnel 

B10.2. Special needs: Food preparation for emergency personnel, & cots 

B10.3. Special storage: Cots 

mailto:Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com
mailto:mail@mra-architects.com


Harvard Fire Station Program Document 8/30/2019, Page 3 of 19 

29 Thacher Park Road  Voorheesville, NY 12186 (518) 765-4571 Fax (518) 765-2950

E-mail: Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com  Copyright Mitchell Associates Architects 2017 Web Site: Mitchell-Architects.com

B11. Firematic Business: 

B11.1. Describe: 

.11.1.1. Full time Chief 

.11.1.2. Full time employee – 50% fire prevention & 50% EMS 

.11.1.3. Part-time administrator (currently 8 hrs/week) 

B12. In-Station Meetings: 

B12.1. Type: Officers; size: 10; frequency: Monthly 

B12.2. Type: Department; size: 50; frequency: Monthly 

B13. Social Life:  This is a family friendly department! 

B13.1. Daily recreation – describe: None 

B13.2. Periodic recreation – describe: Association dinner 2 times/year for 50 people 

.13.2.1. One at Fruitlands 

.13.2.2. One at Retired Chief’s yard 

B13.3. Outdoor recreation – describe: None 

B14. Access control: 

B14.1. Electronic access: Yes 

B14.2. Vendor’s access to drop off material: Yes; where: TBD 

B15. Miscellaneous Notes: 

B15.1. Recently spent $54 million on school, and $2 million on senior center 

B15.2. Average property tax is $12,000.  Scholl project increased the average by $1,200 

B15.3. Department runs an Explorer Scout Post 

1 Apparatus Bays 

1.1 Number of vehicles: 8; # of bays: _4 

Front Line Vehicles 

1.1.1 Name: Engine 2; type: Pumper; length: 30’-10”; weight: 47,000 

1.1.2 Name: Ambulance; type: Ambulance; length: 25’-8”; weight: 16,500 

1.1.3 Name: Tanker; type: Tanker; length: 31’; weight: 60,000 

1.1.4 Name: Tower; type: Aerial; length: 38’-6”; weight: 44,000 

Second Line Vehicles 

1.1.5 Name: Engine 1; type: Pumper; length: 29’-8”; weight: 43,000 

1.1.6 Name: Engine 3; type: Pumper; length: 25’-6”; weight: 35,000 

1.1.7 Name: Engine 4; type: Pumper; length: 32’-4” weight: 47,000 

1.1.8 Name: Forestry; type: Brush Truck; length: 22’; weight: 19,000 

1.2 Type of bays: 

1.2.1 Drive-through: Yes; quantity: 4 

1.2.2 Double deep: Yes; quantity: 4 

APPARATUS 

mailto:Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com
mailto:mail@mra-architects.com


Harvard Fire Station Program Document 8/30/2019, Page 4 of 19 

29 Thacher Park Road  Voorheesville, NY 12186 (518) 765-4571 Fax (518) 765-2950

E-mail: Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com  Copyright Mitchell Associates Architects 2017 Web Site: Mitchell-Architects.com

1.3 Wash bay: No, wash in place 

1.4 Plan for future expansion of bays: No 

1.5 Overhead doors: 

1.5.1 Front: 

1.5.1.1 Number: 4 

1.5.1.2 Width: 13’-4”; Height: 14’ 

1.5.1.3 Windows: 2 rows of glass 

1.5.2 Rear: 

1.5.2.1 Number: 4 

1.5.2.2 Width: 13’-4”; Height: 14’ 

1.5.2.3 Windows: 1 row of glass 

1.6 

1.7 

1.8 

1.9 

1.10 

1.11 

1.12 

1.13 

1.14 

1.15 

1.16 

1.17 

1.18 

1.19 

1.20 

Signage requirements: IAmResponding 

Trench drains: Yes; Layout: Centerline of trucks 

Wall mounted water hose reels: Yes; Quantity: Yes; Tempered: Yes 

Fume exhaust: Yes; Type: Plymovent 

Truck fills: 

1.10.1 Wall hydrant: Yes; Quantity: 1 

1.10.2 Outdoor hydrant: Yes; Quantity: 1 

Overhead electrical drops: Yes; Quantity: 8 

Overhead airdrops: Yes; Quantity: 8 

Compressed air for tools: Yes 

Wall mounted air hose reels: Yes; Quantity: 1 on center column 

Hand wash sinks: Yes; Where: Near doors to cold zone 

Water fountain/bottle filling station: Yes 

Storage of Diesel Exhaust Fluid: In work room 

Epoxy flooring: Yes 

Wall construction type: CMU 

Size: 5,707/ sq ft 

2 Secondary Apparatus Bay 

2.1 Number of vehicles: 5; # of bays: 5 

2.1.1 Name: Boat; length: 22’ (16” boat – 22’ w/ trailer) 

2.1.2 Name: Special Ops Trailer; length: 18’; Comment: Pulled by Forestry 

2.1.3 Name: Emergency Mgt. Trailer; length: 16’; Comment: Pulled by Forestry 

2.1.4 Name: Antique (1929); type: Pumper; length: 20’ 

2.1.5 Name: B-Model (1956); type: Pumper; length: 23’-9” 

2.2 Type of bays: 

2.2.1 Single deep: Yes; quantity: 5 

2.3 Wash bay: No 

2.4 Plan for future expansion of bays: No 

mailto:Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com
mailto:mail@mra-architects.com


Harvard Fire Station Program Document 8/30/2019, Page 5 of 19 

29 Thacher Park Road  Voorheesville, NY 12186 (518) 765-4571 Fax (518) 765-2950

E-mail: Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com  Copyright Mitchell Associates Architects 2017 Web Site: Mitchell-Architects.com

2.5 Overhead doors: 

2.5.1 Front: 

2.5.1.1 Number: 4 

2.5.1.2 Width: 10’; Height: 10’ 

2.5.1.3 Windows: 1 row 

2.6 Signage requirements: No 

2.7 Catch basin drains: Yes; Layout: Vehicle centers 

2.8 Wall mounted water hose reels: No 

2.9 Fume exhaust: No 

2.10 Overhead electrical drops: Yes; Quantity: 4 

2.11 Overhead airdrops: No 

2.12 Compressed air for tools: No 

2.13 Utility sinks: No 

2.14 Hand wash sinks: No 

2.15 Water fountain/bottle filling station: No 

2.16 Storage of Diesel Exhaust Fluid: No 

2.17 Epoxy flooring: No 

2.18 Wall construction type: CMU 

2.19 Size: 1,720 sq ft 

3 Carport 

3.1 Number of vehicles: 3 

3.1.1 Name: Car 1 – Ford Interceptor; type: SUV; length: 16’-5” 

3.1.2 Name: Car 2 – Ford Interceptor; type: SUV; length: 16’-5” 

3.1.3 Name: Pickup w/ plow 

3.2 Comments: Possible solar array on roof 

3.3 Size: 1,035 sq ft 

4 Mezzanine 

4.1 Use: Training & storage 

4.2 Training Features: Ladder evolutions, bail out, confined extrication, mask confidence, etc. 

4.3 Manhole size/type:  TBD 

4.4 Location: Adjacent apparatus bay 

4.5 Size: 1,138 sq ft 

FIREMATIC SUPPORT 

mailto:Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com
mailto:mail@mra-architects.com


Harvard Fire Station Program Document 8/30/2019, Page 6 of 19 

29 Thacher Park Road  Voorheesville, NY 12186 (518) 765-4571 Fax (518) 765-2950

E-mail: Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com  Copyright Mitchell Associates Architects 2017 Web Site: Mitchell-Architects.com

5 Storage Room #1 

5.1 Use: Firematic equipment & supplies 

5.2 Specific items to be stored:  

5.2.1 Four fire extinguishers 

5.2.2 Ice sled 

5.3 Security: Yes 

5.4 Adjacencies: Apparatus Floor 

5.5 Size: 216 sq ft 

6 Storage Room #2 

6.1 Use: Firematic equipment & supplies in shelves 

6.2 Security: Yes 

6.3 Adjacencies: Apparatus Floor 

6.4 Size: 216 sq ft 

7 EMS Supplies 

7.1 Operational Comments: 

7.1.1 All medical supplies needed for stocking the ambulance 

7.2 Security: Yes 

7.3 Adjacencies: Apparatus bay 

7.4 Comments: Easily decontaminated surfaces 

7.5 Size: 199 sq ft 

8 Turnout Gear Storage Room 

8.1 Operational Comments:  

8.1.1 Response pathway 

8.1.1.1 Respond to station 

8.2 Quantity of Lockers: 42 

8.3 Describe Lockers: Wire mesh 

8.4 Locker Size: 24” x 24” 

8.5 2 Gumby suits, rolled into storage bag & placed in 2 lockers, with ropes & rescue slings 

8.6 Adjacencies: Apparatus bay 

8.7 Comments: Easily decontaminated surfaces, floor drain 

8.8 Size: 559 sq ft 

9 DeCon/Laundry 

9.1 Operational Comments:  

9.1.1 Essential decontamination of equipment, PPE and personnel 

9.2 Chemical, biological, radiological and nuclear (CBRN) environments: Yes 

9.3 Sink(s): One; Foot pedal supply: Yes; Knee operated drain: Yes; Number of sink chambers: 2 

9.4 Gear washer/extractor: One, size: 65 

9.5 Cabinet gear dryer: One 

mailto:Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com
mailto:mail@mra-architects.com


Harvard Fire Station Program Document 8/30/2019, Page 7 of 19 

29 Thacher Park Road  Voorheesville, NY 12186 (518) 765-4571 Fax (518) 765-2950

E-mail: Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com  Copyright Mitchell Associates Architects 2017 Web Site: Mitchell-Architects.com

9.6 Residential type clothes washer & dryer: Yes 

9.7 Drench shower: Yes 

9.8 SCBA Washing: Yes; Describe: Machine 

9.9 Backboard/Etc. cleaning: Yes, sprayed in gross decon area 

9.10 Holding tank: Maybe, discuss with sewer plant operator 

9.11 Special needs: Decontaminate Gumby Suits 

9.12 Adjacencies: Apparatus bay 

9.13 Comments: Easily decontaminated surfaces, floor drain 

9.14 Size: 326 sq ft 

10 Hot Side Shower(s) 

10.1 Operational Comments:  

10.1.1 Single occupant private showers 

10.1.2 Comply with recommendation of a hot shower within an hour of exposure 

10.2 Quantity: 3 

10.3 Adjacencies: Decon laundry, and hot side lockers 

10.4 Comments: Easily decontaminated surfaces, floor drain 

10.5 Size: 121 sq ft 

11 Hot Side Lockers 

11.1 Operational Comments:  

11.1.1 Clean clothes to replace those contaminated at scene 

11.1.2 Comply with recommendation of a hot shower within an hour of exposure 

11.2 Quantity: 60 @ 12” x 12” ½ high 

11.3 Adjacencies: Hot side showers 

11.4 Comments: Easily decontaminated surfaces, floor drain 

11.5 Size: 142 sq ft 

12 Hazardous Waste Storage 

12.1 Location: Under tower stair 

12.2 Security: Yes 

12.3 Comments: 

12.3.1 Containment floor, polymer door & frame 

12.3.2 55 gal poly drum for red bag 

12.3.3 Easily decontaminated surfaces 

12.4 Size: 12 sq ft 

13 Hose Storage 

13.1 Operational Comments:  

13.1.1 Recess with rack above washer 

13.2 Hose racks: Darley 

13.3 Hose drying: No 

mailto:Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com
mailto:mail@mra-architects.com


Harvard Fire Station Program Document 8/30/2019, Page 8 of 19 

29 Thacher Park Road  Voorheesville, NY 12186 (518) 765-4571 Fax (518) 765-2950

E-mail: Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com  Copyright Mitchell Associates Architects 2017 Web Site: Mitchell-Architects.com

13.4 Hose washer: Yes - Groves 

13.5 Hose winder: Yes 

13.6 Inventory:  

13.6.1 3” LDH: 6@ 50’ [4 ½” footprint] 

13.6.2 2” LDH: 6 @ 50’ [3 1/2” footprint] 

13.6.3 Total LF of hose rack = 4’+  

13.7 Location: Under mezzanine edge 

13.8 Comments: Recess w/ washer below, and rack above 

13.9 Size: 16 sq ft 

14 Work Room 

14.1 Use: Repair & maintenance of essential firematic equipment  

14.2 Workbench: Yes – 10’ 

14.3 Parts bin system 

14.4 Tool storage: Rolling toolbox 45” w x 22” d x 40” h 

14.5 Stationary power tools: Pedestal mounted grinder, drill press, parts washer 

14.6 Water/Sink: Yes 

14.7 Air hose reel: Yes 

14.8 Flammable Storage: Yes 35” w x 19” d x 65 ½” h 

14.9 Security: Yes 

14.10 Location: Near apparatus bay 

14.11 Size: 266 sq ft 

15 Utility Recess 

15.1 Operational Comments:  

15.1.1 To support truck cleaning 

15.2 Slop sink: Yes 

15.3 Truck cleaning tool & supplies: Yes 

15.4 Garbage & recycling: Yes 

15.5 Curb & floor drain: Yes 

15.6 Adjacencies: Apparatus bay 

15.7 Size: 32 sq ft 

16 Hydration 

16.1 Operational Comments:  

16.1.1 Water and ice for rehab 

16.2 Refrigerator with water bottles: Yes 

16.3 Ice machine: Yes 

16.4 Shelving for coolers & portable water container: Yes 

16.5 Location: Warm or cold zone  

16.6 Adjacencies: Apparatus bay 

16.7 Size: 36 sq ft 

mailto:Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com
mailto:mail@mra-architects.com


Harvard Fire Station Program Document 8/30/2019, Page 9 of 19 

29 Thacher Park Road  Voorheesville, NY 12186 (518) 765-4571 Fax (518) 765-2950

E-mail: Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com  Copyright Mitchell Associates Architects 2017 Web Site: Mitchell-Architects.com

17 SCBA Compressor Room 

17.1 Air compressor size: TBD 

17.2 Sound attenuation panels: Maybe 

17.3 Ladder tank feed line: Yes 

17.4 Cascade: Yes 

17.5 External feed lines: Yes, to ladder @ 14’ AFF 

17.6 House Air Compressor: Yes 

17.7 Location: On Mezzanine 

17.8 Security: Yes 

17.9 Comments: Adequate ventilation for compressor heat 

17.10 Size: 127 sq ft 

18 SCBA Fill Station Room 

18.1 “Public” access: No 

18.2 Sink: Yes, 3 bowl SS 

18.3 Filling station: Yes 

18.4 SCBA storage: Spare packs & bottles 

18.5 SCBA repair: Very minor, batteries, O-rings, etc. 

18.6 Air Bottles – Size & Quantity: 3 

18.7 Back Packs – Size & Quantity: 3 

18.8 Location: Under mezzanine compressor room 

18.9 Security: No 

18.10 Comments: Easily decontaminated surfaces, floor drain 

18.11 Size: 120 sq ft 

19 Yard Storage 

19.1 Items to be stored: 

19.1.1 Mowers 

19.1.2 Snow blower 

19.1.3 Garbage & recycling 

19.1.4 Grill 

19.1.5 Etc. 

19.2 Location: Not critical 

19.3 Security: Yes 

19.4 Comments: Easily decontaminated surfaces, floor drain 

19.5 Size: 249 sq ft plus 2 ft 

20 Janitor’s Closet  

20.1 Mop Receptor: Yes 

20.2 Floor Machine: Yes 

20.3 Shelving: Yes 

20.4 Mop/Broom Rack: Yes, w/ wet mop to drip over mop receptor 

mailto:Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com
mailto:mail@mra-architects.com


Harvard Fire Station Program Document 8/30/2019, Page 10 of 19 

29 Thacher Park Road  Voorheesville, NY 12186 (518) 765-4571 Fax (518) 765-2950

E-mail: Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com  Copyright Mitchell Associates Architects 2017 Web Site: Mitchell-Architects.com

20.5 Adjacencies: Apparatus bay 

20.6 Comments: Easily decontaminated surfaces, floor drain 

20.7 Size: 64 sq ft 

21 Apparatus Floor Rest Room 

21.1 Quantity: 1 

21.2 Fixture: Sink, toilet & urinal? 

21.3 Shower: No 

21.4 Lockers: No 

21.5 Adjacencies: Apparatus bay 

21.6 Comments: Easily decontaminated surfaces, floor drain 

21.7 Size: 78 sq ft 

22 Ready Room 

22.1 Operational Comments:  

22.1.1 Staffing hangout adjacent apparatus bay 

22.2 Seating for how many: 8 

22.3 Food Counter: Yes 

22.4 Sink: Yes 

22.5 Refrigerator: Yes, small 

22.6 Adjacencies: Bay 

22.7 Comments: “Dirty side” meeting, waiting, etc. 

22.8 Size: 169 sq ft 

23 Radio/Watch Room 

23.1 View control: Bay, apron and entry 

23.2 Operational Comments:  

23.2.1 Backup dispatch 

23.3 Seating for how many: 3 

23.4 Items: 

23.4.1 Door operator switches: Yes 

23.4.2 Traffic device control: Unknown 

23.4.3 Light switches for app bay: Yes; Outside: Yes 

23.4.4 Internal paging system: Yes 

23.4.5 Siren trigger: Yes; Shutoff: Yes; Siren location: TBD 

23.4.6 Computer equipment: 2 workstations 

23.4.7 Closed Circuit TV, Phones, Weather Station:  Yes 

23.4.8 File cabinets: Yes; Describe: 2 @ 2-drawer 

23.4.9 Wall mounted items: Flat screens (closed circuit) 

23.4.10 Rechargeable items (flashlights, pagers): Yes 

23.4.11 Lockable storage: No 

23.5 Items to be located in this space (from current inventory): 

mailto:Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com
mailto:mail@mra-architects.com


Harvard Fire Station Program Document 8/30/2019, Page 11 of 19 

29 Thacher Park Road  Voorheesville, NY 12186 (518) 765-4571 Fax (518) 765-2950

E-mail: Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com  Copyright Mitchell Associates Architects 2017 Web Site: Mitchell-Architects.com

23.5.1 Vision – Radio box control station 

23.6 Security: No 

23.7 Adjacencies: Bay & front entry 

23.8 Size: 186 sq ft 

24 Training Tower 

24.1 Describe: Similar to Holden 

24.2 Size: 144 sq ft on 1st floor, 135 sq ft on three additional levels 

25 Staff Lobby 

25.1 Items to be located in this space: 

25.1.1 Bulletin board 

25.1.2 Service window to radio room from vestibule 

25.1.3 Small counter in vestibule 

25.1.4 Forms holder in vestibule 

25.2 Adjacencies: Radio room 

25.3 Size: 100 sq ft 

26 Conference Room 

26.1 Uses:  

26.1.1 Officer meetings 

26.1.2 Small training 

26.1.3 Work committees 

26.2 Seat how many: 10 at table; 0 at wall 

26.3 Is there a workstation with a computer to be shared by all users: No 

26.4 Location: Offices 

26.5 Security: Yes 

26.6 Adjacencies: Chief 

26.7 Size: 252 sq ft 

27 Chief’s Office 

27.1 Seat how many: 1 @ desk, 4 @ table 

27.2 Security: Yes 

27.3 Adjacencies: Administrative assistant & conference room 

27.4 Size: 229 sq ft 

ADMINISTRATION 

ADMINISTRATION

mailto:Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com
mailto:mail@mra-architects.com


Harvard Fire Station Program Document 8/30/2019, Page 12 of 19 

29 Thacher Park Road  Voorheesville, NY 12186 (518) 765-4571 Fax (518) 765-2950

E-mail: Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com  Copyright Mitchell Associates Architects 2017 Web Site: Mitchell-Architects.com

28 Administrative Assistant 

28.1 Seat how many: 1 at desk, 2 opposite 

28.2 Security: Yes 

28.3 Adjacencies: Lobby & Chief 

28.4 Comments: Service counter to lobby 

28.5 Size: 154 sq ft 

29 Office Support Workroom 

29.1 Purpose: 

29.1.1 Copier 

29.1.2 Fax 

29.1.3 Recycling 

29.1.4 Mailboxes 

29.1.5 Work Surface 

29.1.6 Storage Cabinets 

29.2 Security: No 

29.3 Adjacencies: Admin assistant 

29.4 Size: 129 sq ft 

30 Fire Prevention Office 

30.1 Seat how many: 1 at desk, 1 opposite 

30.2 Use: Plan review 

30.3 Location: Office area 

30.4 Security: Yes 

30.5 Adjacencies: None required 

30.6 Comments: Drawing storage, room to roll out drawings, large flat screen 

30.7 Size: 175 sq ft 

31 Training Office 

31.1 Seat how many: 2 

31.2 Use: development of training curriculum for the department 

31.3 Location: Office area 

31.4 Security: Yes 

31.5 Adjacencies: None required 

31.6 Size: 119 sq ft 

mailto:Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com
mailto:mail@mra-architects.com


Harvard Fire Station Program Document 8/30/2019, Page 13 of 19 

29 Thacher Park Road  Voorheesville, NY 12186 (518) 765-4571 Fax (518) 765-2950

E-mail: Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com  Copyright Mitchell Associates Architects 2017 Web Site: Mitchell-Architects.com

32 EMS Office 

32.1 Seat how many: 2 

32.2 Use: Administration of emergency medical services 

32.3 Location: Office area 

32.4 Security: Yes 

32.5 Adjacencies: None required 

32.6 Comments: HIPAA privacy 

32.7 Size: 166 sq ft 

33 Office Area ADA Compliant Rest Room 

33.1 Quantity: 1 

33.2 Fixture: Sink, toilet & urinal 

33.3 Location: Office area 

33.4 Comments: Easily decontaminated surfaces, floor drain 

33.5 Size: 67 sq ft 

34 Fire Education Storage 

34.1 Seat how many: 1 

34.2 Is there a workstation with a computer: Yes 

34.3 Items to be located in this space:  

34.3.1 Fire prevention paraphernalia 

34.4 Location: Office area 

34.5 Security: Yes 

34.6 Adjacencies: None required 

34.7 Size: 100 sq ft 

35 Records Storage 

35.1 Items to be located in this space: 

35.1.1 File cabinets 

35.2 Location: Office area 

35.3 Security: Yes 

35.4 Adjacencies: None required 

35.5 Size: 100 sq ft 

mailto:Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com
mailto:mail@mra-architects.com


Harvard Fire Station Program Document 8/30/2019, Page 14 of 19 

29 Thacher Park Road  Voorheesville, NY 12186 (518) 765-4571 Fax (518) 765-2950

E-mail: Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com  Copyright Mitchell Associates Architects 2017 Web Site: Mitchell-Architects.com

For current planning assume 2-person EMS shift at station.  In future, plan on 4-person shift in the station at all times 

36 Day Room 

36.1 Kitchen – not a commercial kitchen 

36.1.1 Number people to work at one time: 3 

36.1.2 Equipment:  

36.1.2.1 Stove size: Large 4 burner 

36.1.2.2 Describe refrigerators: For future, allow space for 2 refrigerators & 1 freezer 

36.1.2.3 Describe sinks: 1 general, 1 ADA 

36.1.2.4 Dish washer: Yes 

36.1.2.5 Describe pantries: Allow space for 4 shift pantries, and one shared 

36.1.3 Access to exterior?: If possible 

36.2 Dining/Eating 

36.2.1 Seat how many: 10 

36.3 Sitting Area 

36.3.1 Seat how many: 5 

36.4 Location: Living area 

36.5 Size: 705 sq ft 

37 Living Room 

Seat how many: 5 

Activities other than T-V?: No 

Adjacencies: Day Room 

37.1 Comments: Sound dampening walls, gasketed door 

Size: 293 sq ft 

38 Study Room 

38.1 Seat how many: 3 

38.2 Adjacencies: Dining & living 

38.3 Comments: Sound dampening walls, gasketed door 

38.4 Size: 130 sq ft  

39 Physical Training 

39.1 Equipment: 

39.1.1 Cardio 

39.1.2 Weights 

39.1.3 Weight Machines 

39.2 Location: Living area 

39.3 Security: No 

FIREFIGHTERS 

mailto:Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com
mailto:mail@mra-architects.com


Harvard Fire Station Program Document 8/30/2019, Page 15 of 19 

29 Thacher Park Road  Voorheesville, NY 12186 (518) 765-4571 Fax (518) 765-2950

E-mail: Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com  Copyright Mitchell Associates Architects 2017 Web Site: Mitchell-Architects.com

39.4 Adjacencies: TBD 

39.5 Comments: Sound dampening walls, gasketed door 

39.6 Size: 615 sq ft 

40 Firefighters’ ADA Compliant Rest Room 

40.1 Quantity: One 

40.2 Fixture: Sink, toilet & urinal 

40.3 Comments: Easily decontaminated surfaces, floor drain 

40.4 Size: 70 sq ft 

41 Lockers/Shower 

41.1 Showers: 1 

41.2 Lockers: 18 ½ high 

41.3 Other: Bench 

41.4 Adjacencies: Physical Training 

41.5 Comments: ADA Compliant 

41.6 Size: 100 sq ft 

42 Bunkers/Bedrooms 

42.1 Number of rooms: 4 

42.2 Beds per room: 1 

42.3 Storage: 4 individual lockers 

42.4 Desks: No 

42.5 Location: Living area 

42.6 Security: Yes 

42.7 Comments: Sound dampening walls, gasketed door, bedding cubbies 

42.8 Size: 104 sq ft  

43 Storm Coverage Bunkroom (same footprint as 2 bunkrooms) 

43.1 Number of rooms: 1 

43.2 Beds per room:6 Bunk Beds 

43.3 Storage: Cubbies 

43.4 Desks: No 

43.5 Location: Living area 

43.6 Security: No 

43.7 Comments: Sound dampening walls, gasketed door 

43.8 Size: 287 sq ft  

44 Bunker’s Bathrooms 

44.1 Quantity: 2 

44.2 Details: Uni-sex, single occupant 

44.3 Fixtures: Toilet, urinal, shower, sink & bench 

44.4 Security: Privacy lock 

mailto:Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com
mailto:mail@mra-architects.com


Harvard Fire Station Program Document 8/30/2019, Page 16 of 19 

29 Thacher Park Road  Voorheesville, NY 12186 (518) 765-4571 Fax (518) 765-2950

E-mail: Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com  Copyright Mitchell Associates Architects 2017 Web Site: Mitchell-Architects.com

44.5 Adjacencies: Bunk rooms 

44.6 Comments: Easily decontaminated surfaces, floor drain 

44.7 Size: 72 & 91 sq ft  

45 Bunker’s Area Laundry Room 

45.1 Details: Washing of bedding & station uniforms 

45.2 Location: Bunking area 

45.3 Comments: Easily decontaminated surfaces, floor drain 

45.4 Size: 72 sq ft  

46 Public Entry Area 

46.1 Display case: 2’ x 6’, floor to ceiling 

46.2 Bulletin board: Yes; Size: 4’ x 6’ 

46.3 Plaque: Yes 

46.4 Comments: Admin. Assistant’s service window w/ writing surface & forms holder 

46.5 Museum – Allow for possible display area for antique paid for by subscription 

46.6 Size: 200 sq ft 

47 Coat Recess 

47.1 Number of coats: 50 

47.2 Location: Hallway 

47.3 Adjacencies: Meeting/Training 

47.4 Size: 26 sq ft 

48 Meeting/Training Room 

48.1 Intended population: 49, sub-dividable 

48.2 Public access: Yes 

48.3 Uses: 

48.3.1 Department meetings 

48.3.2 Training, incl. outside trainers & outside groups 

48.3.3 Group meetings 

48.3.4 EOC 

48.3.5 Fundraising dinners: No 

48.3.6 Rental: No 

48.4 Number of tables & size: 12 

48.5 Number of chairs: 80 

48.6 Trophy case: No 

48.7 Whiteboard: Yes 

48.8 Bulletin board: Yes 

PUBLIC SPACES 

mailto:Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com
mailto:mail@mra-architects.com


Harvard Fire Station Program Document 8/30/2019, Page 17 of 19 

29 Thacher Park Road  Voorheesville, NY 12186 (518) 765-4571 Fax (518) 765-2950

E-mail: Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com  Copyright Mitchell Associates Architects 2017 Web Site: Mitchell-Architects.com

48.9 Projector & screen: yes 

48.10 Location: Near public lobby 

48.11 Adjacencies: Table/chair storage, training props, kitchen 

48.12 Security: Yes 

48.13 Comments: sub-dividable.  Additional electronic infrastructure for EOC 

48.14 Size: 748 sq ft 

49 Meeting/Training Room Table & Chair Storage 

49.1 Table rack quantity: 1 @ 10 tables each 

49.2 Chair rack quantity: 5 @ 16 chairs each 

49.3 Adjacencies: Meeting/training 

49.4 Security: Yes 

49.5 Comments: Robust walls 

49.6 Size: 56 sq ft 

50 Training Prop Storage 

50.1 Adjacencies: Meeting/Training 

50.2 Security: Yes 

50.3 Size: 77 sq ft 

51 Meeting/Training Room A/V Equipment 

51.1 Adjacencies: Meeting/Training 

51.2 Security: Yes 

51.3 Size: 4 sq ft 

52 Kitchen to serve 30 

52.1 Uses: Departmental monthly, and other meetings 

52.2 Equipment types and size: 

Refrigerator/freezer: Yes 

Sink(s) Pot: Yes; Scrub: Yes; Disposal: No 

Dishwasher: Yes 

Stove: Large 4 burner, w/ oven 

Hood: Yes 

52.3 Shuttered opening: Yes 

52.4 Door to exterior: If possible, but indirect 

52.5 Dish storage: Base & wall cabinets 

52.6 Pantry/food storage: Base & wall cabinets 

52.7 Locked storage: Base & wall cabinets 

52.8 Adjacencies: Meeting/Training 

52.9 Security: Yes 

52.10 Comments: Easily decontaminated surfaces, floor drain 

52.11 Size: 204 sq ft 

mailto:Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com
mailto:mail@mra-architects.com


Harvard Fire Station Program Document 8/30/2019, Page 18 of 19 

29 Thacher Park Road  Voorheesville, NY 12186 (518) 765-4571 Fax (518) 765-2950

E-mail: Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com  Copyright Mitchell Associates Architects 2017 Web Site: Mitchell-Architects.com

53 Public Rest Rooms 

53.1 Quantity: 2, uni-sex 

53.2 Adjacencies: Meeting/training 

53.3 Comments: Handicapped accessible 

53.4 Size: 182 sq ft 

54 Entry Vestibules (2) 

54.1 Size: 60 sq ft 

55 House Keeping Storage 

55.1 Size: 50 sq ft 

56 Office Side Janitors Closet 

56.1 Mop Receptor 

56.2 Slop Sink 

56.3 Floor Machine 

56.4 Shelving 

56.5 Mop/Broom Rack 

56.6 Location: Not critical (2 if a 2-story building) 

56.7 Comments: Easily decontaminated surfaces, floor drain 

56.8 Size: 78 sq ft 

57 File Server 

57.1 Location: Not critical 

57.2 Security: Yes 

57.3 Comments: Adequate AC 

57.4 Size: 84 sq ft 

58 Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing, HVAC, Sprinkler, Alarm, etc. 

58.1 Fuel type at site: Natural gas 

58.2 Heating type in apparatus bay: In-floor radiant 

58.3 Heating type elsewhere: Ducted 

58.4 Building to be sprinklered: Yes 

58.4.1 Adequate water pressure: TBD 

58.4.2 Storage tank: TBD 

58.5 Hose bibs for exterior: Yes 

58.6 Bay lighting type: Linear LED 

58.7 Site lighting type: LED, w/ additional apron lighting 

MISCELLANEOUS SPACES 

SPACES

mailto:Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com
mailto:mail@mra-architects.com


Harvard Fire Station Program Document 8/30/2019, Page 19 of 19 

29 Thacher Park Road  Voorheesville, NY 12186 (518) 765-4571 Fax (518) 765-2950

E-mail: Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com  Copyright Mitchell Associates Architects 2017 Web Site: Mitchell-Architects.com

58.8 Generator: Yes 

58.8.1 Fuel: Diesel 

58.8.2 Location of generator: On site 

58.8.3 Circuits on generator: All 

58.9 Access control type: Fobs, plus a few keypads 

58.10 Security cameras: Yes 

58.11 Siren: Yes, electronic pole mounted; Mounting location: TBD 

58.12 Size: 350 sq ft 

59 Sprinkler Room 

59.1 Assume 70 sq ft 

60 Miscellaneous Issues 

Comments: If Hazel site is selected, should extend sewer 

mailto:Bob@Mitchell-Architects.com
mailto:mail@mra-architects.com




H
a
rv

a
rd

 F
ir

e 
H

ea
d

q
u

a
rt

er
s 

S
p

a
ce

/U
sa

g
e 

A
n

a
ly

si
s

P
ro

g
ra

m
 

It
em

R
o

o
m

 N
a

m
e

 1
st

 F
lo

o
r 

A
re

a
M

ez
z

U
p

p
er

 

T
o

w
er

R
em

o
te

 

S
tr

u
ct

u
re

T
o

ta
l 

A
re

a

P
ro

g
ra

m
 

It
em

R
o

o
m

 N
a

m
e

 1
st

 F
lo

o
r 

A
re

a
M

ez
z

U
p

p
er

 

T
o

w
er

R
em

o
te

 

S
tr

u
ct

u
re

T
o

ta
l 

A
re

a

A
p

p
a

ra
tu

s 
B

a
y

F
ir

ef
ig

h
te

rs

1
A

p
p

ar
at

u
s 

B
ay

5
,7

0
7

5
,7

0
7

3
6

D
ay

 R
o

o
m

7
0

5
7

0
5

2
S

ec
o

n
d

ar
y
 A

p
p

ar
at

u
s 

B
ay

1
,7

2
0

1
,7

2
0

3
7

L
iv

in
g
 R

o
o

m
2

9
3

2
9

3

3
C

ar
p

o
rt

1
,0

3
5

1
,0

3
5

3
8

S
tu

d
y

1
3

0
1

3
0

S
u

b
to

ta
l 

- 
A

p
p

a
ra

tu
s 

7
,4

2
7

1
,0

3
5

8
,4

6
2

3
9

P
h

y
si

ca
l 

tr
ai

n
in

g
6

1
5

6
1

5

F
ir

em
a

ti
c 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

4
0

A
D

A
 R

es
t 

R
o

o
m

7
0

7
0

4
M

ez
za

n
in

e
1

,1
3

8
  

  
  

  
 

1
,1

3
8

4
1

L
o

ck
er

s/
S

h
o

w
er

1
0

0
1

0
0

4
2

S
ta

n
d

ar
d

 B
u

n
k
ro

o
m

 (
4

 @
 1

0
4

 s
q

 f
t)

4
1

6
4

1
6

5
S

to
ra

g
e 

R
o

o
m

 #
1

2
1

6
2

1
6

4
3

S
to

rm
 C

o
v
er

ag
e 

B
u

n
k
 R

o
o

m
2

8
7

2
8

7

6
S

to
ra

g
e 

R
o

o
m

 #
2

2
1

6
2

1
6

4
4

B
u

n
k
er

s'
 B

at
h

ro
o

m
s 

(1
@

7
2

, 
1

@
9

1
 s

q
 f

t)
1

6
3

1
6

3

7
E

M
S

 S
u

p
p

li
es

1
9

9
1

9
9

4
5

B
u

n
k
er

's
 L

au
n

d
ry

7
2

7
2

8
T

u
rn

o
u

t 
G

ea
r 

S
to

ra
g
e

5
5

9
5

5
9

S
u

b
to

ta
l 

- 
F

ir
ef

ig
h

te
rs

 
2

,8
5

1
2

,8
5

1

9
D

ec
o

n
/L

au
n

d
ry

3
2

6
3

2
6

P
u

b
li

c 
S

p
a

ce
s

1
0

H
o

t 
S

id
e 

S
h

o
w

er
1

2
1

1
2

1
4

6
P

u
b

li
c 

E
n

tr
y
 A

re
a

2
0

0
2

0
0

1
1

H
o

t 
S

id
e 

C
lo

th
in

g
 L

o
ck

er
s

1
4

2
1

4
2

4
7

C
o

at
 R

ec
es

s
2

6
2

6

1
2

H
az

ar
d

o
u

s 
W

as
te

 S
to

ra
g
e

1
2

1
2

4
8

M
ee

ti
n

g
/T

ra
in

in
g
 R

o
o

m
7

4
8

7
4

8

1
3

H
o

se
 S

to
ra

g
e

1
6

1
6

4
9

T
ab

le
 &

 C
h

ai
r 

S
to

ra
g
e

5
6

5
6

1
4

W
o

rk
 R

o
o

m
2

6
6

2
6

6
5

0
T

ra
in

in
g
 P

ro
p

s
7

7
7

7

1
5

U
ti

li
ty

 R
ec

es
s

3
2

3
2

5
1

A
/V

4
4

1
6

H
y
d

ra
ti

o
n

3
6

3
6

5
2

K
it

ch
en

2
0

4
2

0
4

1
7

S
C

B
A

 C
o

m
p

re
ss

o
r

1
2

7
1

2
7

5
3

P
u

b
li

c 
R

es
t 

R
o

o
m

s 
M

 &
 F

1
8

2
1

8
2

1
8

S
C

B
A

 F
il

l 
S

ta
ti

o
n

1
2

0
1

2
0

S
u

b
to

ta
l 

- 
P

u
b

li
c 

S
p

a
ce

s 
1

,4
9

7
1

,4
9

7

1
9

Y
ar

d
 S

to
ra

g
e

2
4

9
2

4
9

M
is

ce
ll

a
n

eo
u

s 
S

p
a

ce

2
0

Ja
n

it
o

r'
s 

C
lo

se
t

6
4

6
4

5
4

(2
)

E
n

tr
y
 V

es
ti

b
u

le
s

1
2

0
1

2
0

2
1

A
p

p
ar

at
u

s 
F

lo
o

r 
B

at
h

ro
o

m
s 

(2
)

7
8

7
8

5
5

H
o

u
se

k
ee

p
in

g
 S

to
ra

g
e

5
0

5
0

2
2

R
ea

d
y
 R

o
o

m
1

6
9

1
6

9
5

6
N

o
n

- 
B

ay
 J

an
it

o
rs

 C
lo

se
ts

7
8

7
8

2
3

R
ad

io
/W

at
ch

 R
o

o
m

1
8

6
1

8
6

5
7

F
il

e 
S

er
v
er

8
4

8
4

2
4

T
o

w
er

1
4

4
1

3
5

1
3

5
4

1
4

5
8

M
ec

h
an

ic
al

/E
le

ct
ri

ca
l

3
5

0
3

5
0

S
u

b
to

ta
l 

- 
F

ir
em

a
ti

c 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

3
,1

5
1

2
6

2
1

3
5

0
3

,5
4

8
5

9
S

p
ri

n
k
le

r
7

0
7

0

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

S
u

b
to

ta
l 

- 
M

is
ce

ll
a

n
eo

u
s 

S
p

a
ce

s 
7

5
2

7
5

2

2
5

S
ta

ff
 L

o
b

b
y

1
0

0
1

0
0

A
re

a
 S

u
b

to
ta

ls

2
6

C
o

n
fe

re
n

ce
2

5
2

2
5

2
B

ay
7

,4
2

7
7

,4
2

7

2
7

C
h

ie
f

2
2

9
2

2
9

F
ir

em
at

ic
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
3

,1
5

1
2

6
2

1
3

5
3

,5
4

8

2
8

A
d

m
in

 A
ss

is
ta

n
t

1
5

4
1

5
4

M
ez

za
n

in
e

1
,1

3
8

1
,1

3
8

2
9

O
ff

ic
e 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

1
2

9
1

2
9

O
ff

ic
e 

&
 L

iv
in

g
6

,6
9

1
6

,6
9

1

3
0

F
ir

e 
P

re
v
en

ti
o

n
 O

ff
ic

e
1

7
5

1
7

5
O

th
er

1
,0

3
5

1
,0

3
5

3
1

T
ra

in
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
1

1
9

1
1

9
W

a
ll

s 
&

 C
ir

cu
la

ti
o

n

3
2

E
M

S
 O

ff
ic

e
1

6
6

1
6

6
A

p
p

ar
at

u
s 

B
ay

 W
al

ls
 @

 8
%

5
9

4
5

9
4

3
3

A
D

A
 R

es
tr

o
o

m
6

7
6

7
F

ir
em

at
ic

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 W
al

ls
 @

 1
5

%
4

7
3

3
9

2
0

5
3

2

3
4

F
ir

e 
E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 S
to

ra
g
e

1
0

0
1

0
0

F
ir

em
at

ic
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 C

ir
cu

la
ti

o
n

 @
 1

5
%

4
7

3
4

7
3

3
5

R
ec

o
rd

s 
S

to
ra

g
e

1
0

0
1

0
0

O
ff

ic
e 

A
re

a 
W

al
ls

 @
 1

6
%

1
,0

7
1

1
,0

7
1

S
u

b
to

ta
l 

- 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 

1
,5

9
1

1
,5

9
1

O
ff

ic
e 

A
re

a 
C

ir
cu

la
ti

o
n

 @
 1

5
%

1
,0

0
4

1
,0

0
4

S
u

b
to

ta
l 

- 
W

a
ll

s 
&

 C
ir

cu
la

ti
o

n
3

,6
1

4
3

9
2

0
0

3
,6

7
3

2
0

,8
8

3
1

,4
3

9
1

5
5

1
,0

3
5

2
3

,5
1

2

2
0

,8
8

3
2

0
,8

8
3

F
o

o
tp

ri
n

t>
>

T
o

ta
l 

>
>

 

M
it

ch
el

l 
A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 A

rc
h

it
ec

ts
2

9
 T

h
ac

h
er

 P
ar

k
 R

o
ad

, 
V

o
o

rh
ee

sv
il

le
, 

N
Y

 1
2

1
8

6
(5

1
8

)
7

6
5

-4
5

7
1

  
(f

ax
) 

7
6

5
-2

9
5

0

8
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
  

H
ar

v
ar

d
 -

1
st

o
ry

 s
p

ac
e 

u
sa

g
e.

x
ls

x

















































































 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SITE SELECTION ANALYSIS 

    

 
 

  





 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

  

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

SITE OVERVIEW 

The existing Harvard Fire Station is an existing non-conforming lot near the top of a hill behind Town 

Hall that is 70,131.6 sf.  (1.61 acres) located at 11 Elm Street.  Optimal recommended parcel size based 

on the program for this study is 2.5 – 3 acres.  The parcel to the east of the site slope away at 

approximately 8% grade down to the Town Hall and the First Congregational Church and then on to Ayer 

Road. The parcel to south of the site slopes away from the Fire Station at approximately 10% grade down 

to the Rectory/Parsonage of the First Congregational Church.   The parcel the west of the site is forested, 

riddled with exposed ledge and slopes away at an approximate 25% grade.  The parcel north of the site 

continues to slope up to the Hildreth House at an approximate grade of 4%.   Approximately half of the 

site is paved and occupied by the fire station.  The other half of the site is divided between a gravel area 

with a temporary tent garage and a heavily ledged wooded area.  The temporary tent garage houses the 

Brush Truck and a flat-bottomed rescue boat and trailer.  The south edge of the property is demarcated 

with a typical ‘New England’ style stone wall.  Vehicle circulation to the south of the building is attained 

via an easement onto 7 Elm Street.   

 

The Fire Station falls within a Wireless Communication Overlay District and is Zoned Agricultural 

Residential.  The Fire Station also falls within the newly implemented Hildreth Housing Overlay District.  

A portion of the eastern edge of the parcel lies within the Historic Overlay District where the historic 

Powder House and Town Pound are located. Around the time of the Revolutionary War gun powder 

would have been stored in the Powder House to be protected and readily available to the town’s militia in 

case of war. The Town’s Pound served as a detention area for stray livestock and owners were required to 

pay restitution for their animals.  The land – structure relations are determined by the Lot Size Standards 

set forth in chapter 125 – 29 and 30 of the Protective Bylaw.  Since the parcel is within 2,500 feet from 

the Town center (intersection of Routes 110 and 111) and the structure is considered institutional the floor 

area ratio limit shall be 20% of the Land area of the lot. The existing structure has a FAR of 

approximately 8% the proposed program would have a FAR of 22%.  The height of a building shall be 

less than three (3) stories and less than 35 feet.  The existing structure complies with the height restriction 

but, the proposed program on the existing site may not.  The zoning setbacks for a building on this site 

should be 20% of the maximum lot width making the setback 35 feet.  On the existing site the building is 

fifteen (15) feet off the north lot line and five (5) feet off the south lot line.  

 

The site is serviced by Town sewer and Town water.  The site is also serviced by underground gas utility 

lines coming into the south side of the building. Overhead utility lines come from the end of Elm Street 

along the south edge of the property and attach to the south east corner of the building.  There is one 

flagpole located just off the north east corner of the building.  At the rear of the building there is a 

communication tower, pole with emergency sirens, apparatus bay, and a trash barrel.  The concrete apron 

in the front of the building is cracked. The concrete apron at the rear apparatus bay is cracked and heaved.  

Neither dumpsters, transformers, nor generators where observed on site. There were no first responder 

memorials located on site.  The asphalt in front of the apparatus bays at the front of the building is mostly 

cracked with pieces braking off along the south edge.  The asphalt in the easement is extensively cracked 

with a portion of the wearing course missing leaving the binder course.  The asphalt at the rear of the 

building is cracking overall.  The newest looking pavement is over the sewer line with and obvious seam 

between new and old pavement.  There is one sidewalk that runs at the rear of the building south and then 

turns east sandwiched between the south edge of the building and stone wall. This walk is about three (3) 

feet wide and leads from the rear of the building to an exterior door halfway down the structure.  At this 

door there is a break in the stone wall with three uneven steps down into the easement area   There is 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

  

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

neither curbing nor any storm water grates on site.  There is no observable storm drainage system on site 

and any storm water simply sheet flows downhill.   

 

The site can be accessed from Ayer Road via an unnamed one-way drive just north of Town Hall or from 

Elm Street, which is also one-way and come in from the south.  Fire response vehicles must navigate a 

360-foot course to Ayer Road consisting of a ten (10) percent grade change, a slalom like zigzag between 

the Town Hall and First Congregationalist Unitarian Church and parking lots with potential vehicular or 

pedestrian conflicts along the way.  Site lines at Ayer Road are approximately 250 feet to the north and 

300 + feet to the south toward the intersection of Fairbank Street and Ayer Road  

 

  

Apparatus access drive down from Station        Station front and apron area 

 

  
Tent structure with Antique Fire Truck         Special Operations Trailer. 

 

  



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

  

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

Emergency Management Trailer                 Woods Road and Ledge. 

 

  
Rear of Station, trash cans.                 Fire apparatus parked outside. 

 

  
Easement area south edge of property.         Binder course visible. 

 

  
Historic Powder House.                 Historic Town Pound. 

 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

  

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

  
View south down Elm Street                Auxiliary Fire Apparatus building and Town Hall. 

 

  
View south down Ayer Road                View north up Ayer Road 

 

 

 

 

 



 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

  

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

Existing Conditions Site plan. 





H
a

rv
a

rd
 F

ir
e

 S
tu

d
y
 

H
a

rv
a

rd
, 

M
a

s
s
a

c
h

u
s
e

tt
s

S
ite

 N
u
m

b
e
r

1
2

3

S
ite

 N
a
m

e
E

x
is

ti
n

g
 F

ir
e
 S

ta
ti

o
n

O
p

ti
o

n
a
l 
S

it
e
 1

O
p

ti
o

n
a
l 
S

it
e
 2

A
d
d
re

s
s

1
1
 E

lm
 S

tr
e
e
t

3
5
 A

y
e
r 

R
o

a
d

3
9
 M

a
s
s
a
c
h

u
s
e
tt

s
 A

v
e

P
a
rc

e
l I

D
1
2
5
0
1
7
C

0
0
3
5
0
0
0
0
0

1
2
5
0
1
7
A

0
0
0
4
0
0
0
0
0

1
2
5
0
2
2
B

0
0
4
3
0
0
0
0
0

L
o
t 
S

iz
e

1
.6

1
 A

c
re

s
4
.3

 A
c
re

s
1
.9

 A
c
re

s
C

u
rr

e
n
t 
U

s
e
s

F
ir
e
 S

ta
tio

n
T

w
o
 F

a
m

ily
E

d
u
c
a
tio

n

N
o
. 
o
f 

B
u
ild

in
g
s
 o

n
 S

ite
1

3
1

O
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

T
o
w

n
 o

f 
H

a
rv

a
rd

W
ill

ia
m

 H
a
ze

l T
ru

s
t 
2
0
1
0

T
o
w

n
 o

f 
H

a
rv

a
rd

P
u
b
lic

 o
r 

P
ri
v
a
te

P
u
b
lic

P
ri
v
a
te

P
u
b
lic

N
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

O
w

n
e
rs

1
2

1
A

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 V

a
lu

e
$
5
1
6
,9

0
0
.0

0
$
5
3
2
,4

0
0
 

$
5
1
6
,4

0
0
 

S
ite

 N
a
tu

ra
l F

e
a
tu

re
s

T
o
p
o
g
ra

p
h
y

S
te

e
p
 s

lo
p
in

g
 s

ite
M

o
re

 g
ra

d
u
a
l t

h
a
n
 s

te
e
p
. 
 S

lo
p
in

g
  

d
o
w

n
 t
o
w

a
rd

 s
tr

e
e
t

G
ra

d
u
a
l s

lo
p
in

g
 d

o
w

n
 t
o
w

a
rd

 s
tr

e
e
t

S
o
ils

C
h
a
tf

ie
ld

-H
o
lli

s
 R

o
c
k
 O

u
tc

ro
p
 

C
o
m

p
le

x 
w

ith
 a

 s
lo

p
e
 o

f 
3
 t
o
 1

5
%

P
a
xt

o
n
 F

in
e
 S

a
n
d
y 

L
o
a
m

 w
ith

 a
n
 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
s
lo

p
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 3

 t
o
 1

5
%

M
o
s
tly

 P
a
xt

o
n
 F

in
e
 S

a
n
d
y 

L
o
a
m

 w
ith

 
8
 t
o
 1

5
%

 s
lo

p
e
s
, 
P

a
rt

ia
l C

a
n
to

n
 F

in
e
 

S
a
n
d
y 

L
o
a
m

 w
ith

 8
 t
o
 1

5
%

 s
lo

p
e
s
, 

P
a
rt

ia
l W

o
o
d
b
ri
d
g
e
 F

in
e
 S

a
n
d
y 

L
o
a
m

 
w

ith
 3

 t
o
 8

%
 s

lo
p
e
s
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

A
re

a
s
 o

f 
C

ri
tic

a
l E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
C

o
n
c
e
rn

 (
A

C
E

C
)

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
a
tio

n
a
l H

e
ri
ta

g
e
 &

 E
n
d
a
n
g
e
re

d
 

S
p
e
c
ie

s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
 (

N
H

E
S

P
)

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

V
e
g
e
ta

tio
n

N
e
w

 E
n
g
la

n
d
 U

p
la

n
d
 D

e
c
id

u
o
u
s
 

F
o
re

s
t 
in

 u
n
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

re
a
s
 r

e
a
r 

o
f 

s
ta

tio
n
. 
S

p
a
rs

e
 la

n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 a

ro
u
n
d
 

b
u
ild

in
g
. 
 

G
ra

s
s
 F

ie
ld

 w
ith

 N
e
w

 E
n
g
la

n
d
 

U
p
la

n
d
 D

e
c
id

u
o
u
s
  
F

o
re

s
t 
a
re

a
s
. 

F
a
rm

 li
k
e
.

L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
d
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
ic

u
re

d
 la

w
n
 

a
lo

n
g
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 t
yp

ic
a
l N

e
w

 E
n
g
la

n
d
 

U
p
la

n
d
 D

e
c
id

u
o
u
s
 F

o
re

s
t 
in

 r
e
a
r.

 

F
lo

o
d
 P

la
in

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

V
e
rn

a
l p

o
o
ls

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

W
e
tla

n
d
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

H
a
b
ita

t
T

yp
ic

a
l f

o
r 

v
e
g
ita

tio
n
 t
yp

e
T

yp
ic

a
l f

o
r 

v
e
g
ita

tio
n
 t
yp

e
T

yp
ic

a
l f

o
r 

v
e
g
ita

tio
n
 t
yp

e
W

e
ll 

h
e
a
d
 p

ro
te

c
tio

n
 a

re
a
, 
S

u
rf

a
c
e
 

W
a
te

r 
P

ro
te

c
tio

n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

N
o

N
o

Y
e
s
, 
In

te
ri
m

 W
e
llh

e
a
d
 P

ro
te

c
tio

n
 

A
re

a
G

ro
u
n
d
 W

a
te

r 
P

ro
te

c
tio

n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
q
u
if
e
r 

Z
o
n
e
 (

m
e
d
iu

m
 &

 H
ig

h
 y

ie
ld

)
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

R
iv

e
rf

ro
n
t 
&

 W
e
tla

n
d
 B

u
ff

e
r 

Z
o
n
e

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
xi

s
tin

g
 Z

o
n
in

g
A

g
ri
c
u
ltu

ra
l R

e
s
id

e
n
tia

l
R

e
s
id

e
n
tia

l 1
A

g
ri
c
u
ltu

ra
l R

e
s
id

e
n
tia

l

Z
o
n
in

g
  
(m

a
xi

m
u
m

 im
p
e
rv

io
u
s
 

s
u
rf

a
c
e
)

2
5
%

2
5
%

2
5
%

M
iin

im
u
m

 s
e
tb

a
c
k
s

F
ro

n
t:
 7

5
' f

ro
m

 r
o
a
d
 c

e
n
te

rl
in

e
, 
S

id
e
 

a
n
d
 R

e
a
r:

 2
0
%

 o
f 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 lo

t 
w

id
th

 
o
r 

m
a
x.

 lo
t 
w

id
th

, 
w

h
ic

h
e
v
e
r 

is
 le

s
s
e
r.

F
ro

n
t:
 7

5
' f

ro
m

 r
o
a
d
 c

e
n
te

rl
in

e
, 
S

id
e
 

a
n
d
 R

e
a
r:

 2
0
%

 o
f 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 lo

t 
w

id
th

 
o
r 

m
a
x.

 lo
t 
w

id
th

, 
w

h
ic

h
e
v
e
r 

is
 le

s
s
e
r.

F
ro

n
t:
 7

5
' f

ro
m

 r
o
a
d
 c

e
n
te

rl
in

e
, 
S

id
e
 

a
n
d
 R

e
a
r:

 2
0
%

 o
f 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 lo

t 
w

id
th

 
o
r 

m
a
x.

 lo
t 
w

id
th

, 
w

h
ic

h
e
v
e
r 

is
 le

s
s
e
r.

M
a
x 

b
u
ild

in
g
 h

e
ig

h
t

3
5
 F

e
e
t

3
5
 F

e
e
t

3
5
 F

e
e
t

A
b
u
tt
in

g
 L

a
n
d
 U

s
e
s

N
o
rt

h
 S

id
e

H
ild

re
th

 H
o
u
s
e
 S

e
n
io

r 
C

e
n
te

r
P

ri
v
a
te

 R
e
s
id

e
n
tia

l
C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l, 

 P
u
b
lic

 S
c
h
o
o
l 

E
a
s
t 
S

id
e

T
o
w

n
 H

a
ll

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l, 

A
u
to

 R
e
p
a
ir
 S

h
o
p

P
ri
v
a
te

 R
e
s
id

e
n
tia

l
S

o
u
th

 S
id

e
F

ir
s
t 
C

o
n
g
re

g
a
tio

n
a
lis

t 
F

e
llo

w
s
h
ip

 
B

u
ild

in
g

B
u
ild

in
g
 1

: 
P

ri
v
a
te

 R
e
s
id

e
n
tia

l  
 

B
u
ild

in
g
 2

: 
C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l, 

D
a
y 

C
a
re

P
ri
v
a
te

 R
e
s
id

e
n
tia

l

W
e
s
t 
S

id
e

P
ri
v
a
te

 R
e
s
id

e
n
c
e

P
ri
v
a
te

 R
e
s
id

e
n
tia

l
P

ri
v
a
te

 R
e
s
id

e
n
tia

l
V

e
h
ic

u
la

r 
A

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

U
til

ity
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 A

v
a
ila

b
le

M
u
n
ic

ip
a
l W

a
te

r 
o
r 

w
e
ll

M
u
n
ic

ip
a
l W

a
te

r
M

u
n
ic

ip
a
l W

a
te

r
M

u
n
ic

ip
a
l W

a
te

r
M

u
n
ic

ip
a
l S

a
n
ita

ry
 S

e
w

e
r

M
u
n
ic

ip
a
l S

e
w

e
r

P
ri
v
a
te

 S
e
w

e
r

U
n
k
n
o
w

n
E

le
c
tr

ic
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

G
a
s

Y
e
s

A
v
a
ili

b
le

A
v
a
ili

b
le

C
o
m

m
u
n
ity

 I
m

p
a
c
ts

K
n
o
w

n
/e

xi
s
tin

g
 im

p
a
c
ts

Im
p
a
c
ts

 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
tia

l
Im

p
a
c
ts

 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
tia

l 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l C
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 (

2
1
-E

),
 A

U
L

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

O
th

e
r 

S
ite

 F
e
a
tu

re
s
/C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

T
ig

h
t 
n
a
rr

o
w

 s
ite

, 
n
o
t 
e
a
s
ily

 
A

d
ja

c
e
n
t 
to

 P
o
lic

e
 S

ta
tio

n
N

e
xt

 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
l

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
S

ite
 S

p
e
c
if
ic

 C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
tio

n
 

C
o
s
ts

P
o
s
s
ib

le
 S

h
a
llo

w
 B

e
d
ro

c
k
. 
V

is
a
b
le

 
ro

c
k
.

P
o
s
s
ib

le
 S

h
a
llo

w
 B

e
d
ro

c
k
, 
A

q
u
s
iti

o
n
 

o
f 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
D

e
m

o
 e

xi
s
tin

g
 b

u
ild

in
g

E
a
rt

h
w

o
rk

A
b
u
n
d
e
n
t 
O

u
tc

ro
p
 a

n
d
 S

h
a
llo

w
 

B
e
d
ro

c
k

A
b
u
n
d
a
n
t 
O

u
tc

ro
p
 a

n
d
 S

h
a
llo

w
 

B
e
d
ro

c
k

T
yp

ic
a
l

R
o
a
d
w

a
ys

N
o
 S

tr
e
e
t 
F

ro
n
ta

g
e

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 D

e
p
o
t 
ro

a
d
 a

n
d
 R

o
u
te

 1
1
0

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 R

o
u
te

 1
1
1

U
til

iti
e
s

P
e
rm

its
M

a
s
s
 H

ig
h
w

a
y

N
/A

M
a
s
s
D

O
T

 S
ta

te
 R

o
u
te

 1
1
0
  
  
  
  
 

P
a
rt

ia
l F

ro
n
ta

g
e

M
a
s
s
D

O
T

 S
ta

te
 R

o
u
te

 1
1
1
  
  
  
  
  

E
n
tir

e
 F

ro
n
ta

g
e

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
tio

n
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
M

E
P

A
  
  
E

IR
 o

r 
E

N
F

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

K
a
e
s
tle

 B
o
o
s
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

te
s
 9

/2
6
/2

0
1
9



A

Y

E

R

 

R

O

A

D

E
L
M

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

HARVARD,MA

EXISTING CONDITIONS

HARVARD FIRE STATION

1" = 60'-0"SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
     c COPYRIGHT KAESTLE BOOS ASSOC., INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
September 27, 2019



A

Y

E

R

 

R

O

A

D

E
L
M

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

HARVARD,MA

EXISTING CONDITIONS

HARVARD FIRE STATION: 2 STORY OPTION

1" = 60'-0"SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
     c COPYRIGHT KAESTLE BOOS ASSOC., INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
September 27, 2019



4.3 ACRE SITE

T

H

I

N

 

T

I

L

L

S

H

A

L

L

O

W

 

B

E

D

R

O

C

K

3-8%

SLOPES

8-15%

SLOPES

ENTIRE SITE IS PAXTON FINE SANDY LOAM

AND CLASSIFIED BY NRCS AS PRIME

FARMLAND

EXISTING

HOUSE

2 EXISTING

BARNS

EXISTING POLICE

STATION

NO WETLANDS ON SITE

SITE IN ZONED AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL AND

WITHIN THE WIRE COMMUNICATION OVERLAY

HARVARD,MA

EXISTING CONDITIONS: 35 AYER ROAD

HARVARD FIRE STATION

1" = 80'-0"SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
440

AutoCAD SHX Text
430

AutoCAD SHX Text
420

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
390

AutoCAD SHX Text
410

AutoCAD SHX Text
     c COPYRIGHT KAESTLE BOOS ASSOC., INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
September 20, 2019



HARVARD,MA

EXISTING CONDITIONS: 35 AYER ROAD

HARVARD FIRE STATION

1" = 80'-0"SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
     c COPYRIGHT KAESTLE BOOS ASSOC., INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
September 27, 2019



HARVARD,MA

EXISTING CONDITIONS: 35 AYER ROAD

HARVARD FIRE STATION: 2 STORY OPTION

1" = 80'-0"SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
     c COPYRIGHT KAESTLE BOOS ASSOC., INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
September 27, 2019



NO WETLANDS ON SITE

8-15%

SLOPES

HARVARD PUBLIC

LIBRARY

MERRIMAC FINE SANDY LOAM

AMOSTOWN AND BELGRADE SOILS

3-8%

SLOPES

SITE IN ZONED AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL AND

WITHIN THE WIRE COMMUNICATION OVERLAY

1.9 ACRE SITE

PAXTON FINE SANDY LOAM

HILDRETH ELEMENTARY

SCHOOL

3-8%

SLOPES

EXISTING

STRUCTURE

HARVARD,MA

EXISTING CONDITIONS: 39 MASS AVE

HARVARD FIRE STATION

1" = 80'-0"SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
420

AutoCAD SHX Text
430

AutoCAD SHX Text
440

AutoCAD SHX Text
450

AutoCAD SHX Text
410

AutoCAD SHX Text
     c COPYRIGHT KAESTLE BOOS ASSOC., INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
September 20, 2019



HARVARD,MA

EXISTING CONDITIONS: 39 MASS AVE

HARVARD FIRE STATION

1" = 80'-0"SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
     c COPYRIGHT KAESTLE BOOS ASSOC., INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
September 27, 2019



HARVARD,MA

EXISTING CONDITIONS: 39 MASS AVE

HARVARD FIRE STATION: 2 STORY OPTION

1" = 80'-0"SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
     c COPYRIGHT KAESTLE BOOS ASSOC., INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
September 27, 2019





 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OPINION OF PROBABLE COST 
 

  





          Harvard Fire Department 
Jan. 2020

Preliminary OPC - Single Story
Cost Detail Subtotals Totals Comments

Direct Construction Costs:

Probable scope

Central Station 23,500 sf $8,225,000

Car Port 1,035   $155,000

Site Development $1,000,000 Assume 2.5 Acres

Design & Estimating Contingency 15.00% $1,407,000

Direct Construction Cost SubTotal:

GC Mark-ups:
General Conditions & Requirements 8.50% $917,000

Bond 1.00% $117,000

Insurance 1.40% $164,000

Building Permit 1.50% Waived by Town

GC Fee 3.00% $324,000

SubTotal:

Escalation (to Midpoint of Construction - 2021): 12.50%

Probable Total Construction Cost:
Equipment Costs

Station Alerting Syatem $105,000 Preliminary Estimate

Furnishings, Furniture  $235,000

Computer Equipment & UPS $50,000

Telephone System $50,000

Security / Access Control $75,000

Firematic Equipment $250,000 Prelim. Allow.

Total Probable Cost of Equipping:

Owner's Indirect Cost
Land Survey $15,000 Allowance

Geotech $20,000 Allowance

Environmental Study N/A Assumed Not Required

Basic A/E Fee 9.5% $1,316,000

Equipment Design & Procurement $77,000

Project Management Fee 4.25% $589,000

Reimbursables/Add Services Allow. $66,000

Structural Peer Review $5,000 If Required (Building Off.)

Utility Backcharges Allow. $50,000

Moving Allow. $15,000

Reproduction / Miscellaneous Allow. $7,000 Assume Electronic Distribution

Legal / Advertising Allow. $10,000

Material Testing Allow. $75,000

Probable Owner's Indirect Costs:

Owner's Contingencies
Construction Contingency 5.00% $692,000

Equipment Contingency 7.50% $57,000

Owner's Indirect Costs Contingency 7.50% $168,000

Owner's  Total Project Contingencies:

Total Project Cost:

Notes: A ll Costs rounded to nearest thousand

Projected Bid

$9,380,000

$10,787,000

$1,522,000

$1,539,000

$13,848,000

Allowance

Allowance

Allowance

Allowance

$765,000

$17,775,000

Verify w/OPM

Verify w/Electric Utility

Verify w/Chief

$2,245,000

$917,000





 

  

HARVARD FIRE STATION  

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

 

 

 

   January 3, 2020 - FINAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 

   7.1  EXISTING BUILDING PLANS 

    

    

 
 































Select Board Minutes                                                             1                                                                              April 26, 2023 
 

 
Select Board Minutes 

    Wednesday, April 26, 2023 
                       7:00pm 

 
 

The Select Board Regular Meeting was held virtually in accordance with Chapter 2 of the Acts of 2023, An 
Act Making Appropriations for the Fiscal Year 2023 to Provide for Supplementing Certain Existing 
Appropriations and for Certain Other Activities and Projects, and signed into law on March 29, 2023, this 
meeting was conducted via remote participation.  
 
Select Board participants:    
Rich Maiore, Erin McBee, Kara Minar, Charles Oliver, Don Ludwig 
Town Department participants:   
Town Administrator Tim Bragan and Assistant Town Administrator Marie Sobalvarro 
Additional participants: 
CoD member Toni Spacciapoli, Tree Warden JC Ferguson, 4th of July Committee Chair Anne Hentz, Park & 
Recreation Commission Chair Bob O’Shea, CPIC Chair Nate Finch 

Commission on Disabilities present findings from a town-wide survey 
Commission member Toni Spacciapoli reported the commission conduced a town-wide survey asking 
residents to identify obstacles which limit mobility or access to town buildings, public spaces and 
recreational areas. They have reviewed the results and identified many similarities with the findings in 
the Self Evaluation and Transition Plan. She highlighted areas in town lacking in accessibility, reviewed 
potential next steps and commission recommendations. Spacciapoli offered to meet with Town 
Administration and the Select Board to chair to discuss options moving forward. 

Tree Warden proposals for planting and moving of trees 
Tree Warden JC Ferguson explained last fall a declining maple located on the left side of the center town 
cemetery entrance between the Congregational church and the General Store. The tree was not in the 
cemetery property. It was dropping branches, posing a hazard to people who congregate in the area. 
Ferguson requested permission to plant a Green Mountain maple to replace the maple that was taken 
down. By a roll call vote, McBee – aye, Minar – aye, Ludwig – aye, Oliver – aye, Maiore – aye, the Select 
Board voted unanimously to approve planting of a Green Mountain maple to compliment the existing 
GM Maple to the left. 
  
In addition, Ferguson explained several American Hornbeam trees were planted as part of the Town Hall 
project. The one at the little island near the very end of Elm St. separating Elm St from the parking lot is 
under severe distress and will die soon. It is a difficult location for anything to thrive due to the heat of 
the summer and the snow that tends to get piled on it during winter. He asked to move this tree to the 
little island at the top of Old Boston Turnpike near where it meets Oak Hill Rd. By a roll call vote, McBee 
– aye, Minar – aye, Ludwig – aye, Oliver – aye, Maiore – aye, the Select Board voted unanimously to 
approve move of the trees as indicated. 
 

4th of July Committee Fireworks update  
Chair Anne Hentz has served as Chair of the committee for the past 10 years. She explained to hold the 
fireworks at Fruitlands the hurdles that came up each year to accommodate the Trustees became too 
difficult. They dictated when the event could be held, eliminated BYOB, increased the rental cost and 
finally wanting to partner with the town to hold the event so they could receive half the profits.  



Select Board Minutes                                                             2                                                                              April 26, 2023 
 

Hentz explained the profits are what makes the event possible for the next year. In addition, Hentz said 
the overall cost of the fireworks as well as the event becoming too large for Harvard to manage also 
attributed to the decision to not hold the fireworks this year. She said the parade and events on the 
common will still happen. She encouraged residents to volunteer to keep these 4th of July traditions 
alive. The Select Board members better understood the challenges the committee members have been 
faced with and will help with planning for next year. They thanked Anne for all her efforts over the years 
to make this event happen. 
 

Minutes 
By a roll call vote, McBee- aye, Minar – aye, Ludwig – aye, Oliver – aye, Mairoe, the board voted 
unanimously to approve minutes of 2/7, 3/21 & 4/4, as presented. 
 

Staff Report/Updates (Attachment A) 
 

Discussion with Capital Planning & Investment Committee (CPIC) on funding of the heavy-duty vehicle 
for the Department of Public Works 
At the last SB meeting member Charles Oliver questioned borrowing instead of utilizing capital funds to 
purchase the vehicle. Town Administrator Tim Bragan had Finance Director Jared Mullane investigate 
the additional cost to the town to purchase through a borrowing. CPIC Chair Nate Finch explained the 
rational behind this decision made by CPIC. Bragan said based on projections the capital fund could 
absorb this cost without an enormous impact on funds available for other smaller needs. Finch said CPIC 
will meet before town meeting for the committee to discuss this. Charles Oliver was interested in voting 
on this funding change now. The Select Board decided to vote on this prior to the town meeting to allow 
CPIC an opportunity to discuss as well. 
 

Discuss steps for Bob O’Shea to serve as interim Recreation Director 
Assistant Town Administrator Marie Sobalvarro acknowledged the work being done in preparation for 
the upcoming beach season by Bob O’Shea as the candidate to fill the Park & Recreation Director 
position is unable to start until the end of August. She explained O’Shea has submitted the required 
disclosure for the Select Board to approve allowing him to take on this role while he continues to serve 
on the Park & Recreation Commission. Bob O’Shea stated he is willing to be employed by the town as 
the interim Park & Recreation Director until the new hire can start. The Select Board members 
expressed their gratitude for all Bob has done to make offerings possible at the beach this summer 
season. By a roll call vote, McBee – aye, Minar – aye, Ludwig – aye, Oliver – aye, Maiore – aye, the board 
voted unanimously to approve 20B disclosure. 
 

MVP Action Grant to protect 39 acres of land on Littleton County Rd 
Harvard Cons Trust member Peter Dorward explained this letter of support/commitment will be 
submitted with the grant application. He explained the CPA approved $200,000 toward this purchase. 
He indicated the Harvard Conservation Trust will purchase the property and the town will place a 
conservation restriction on the property. He said if the grant is awarded the town will receive 75% 
reimbursement of expenses paid on this project. By a roll call vote, McBee – aye, Minar – aye, Ludwig – 
aye, Oliver – aye, Ludwig -aye, Maiore -aye, the board voted unanimously to support the letter and 
application for the grant. 
 

One day entertainment license requests for Carlson Orchards 
Assistant Town Administrator Marie Sobalvarro shared the 30 days requested for entertainment. Town 
Administrator Tim Bragan confirmed the one-day entertainment licenses are legal to be granted.  
Chair Rich Maiore confirmed the days of the week and times are within the conditions for entertainment 
previously established by the Select Board.  



Select Board Minutes                                                             3                                                                              April 26, 2023 
 

By a roll call vote, McBee – aye, Minar -aye, Ludwig -aye, Oliver – aye, Maiore – aye, the board voted 
unanimously to approve the one-day entertainment license requests for Carlson Orchards. 
 

Annual entertainment license for Fivesparks 
Sobalvarro reminded the board this is different district therefore an annual entertainment license can be 
granted. By a roll call vote, McBee – aye, Minar -aye, Ludwig -aye, Oliver – aye, Maiore – aye, the board 
voted unanimously to approve the annual entertainment license for Fivesparks. 
 
Board of Registrars appointment 
By a roll call vote, McBee – aye, Minar -aye, Ludwig -aye, Oliver – aye, Maiore – aye, the board voted 
unanimously to approve Bob Coit’s appointment to the Board of Registrars. 
 
Harvard Climate Initiative Committee MVP grant request 
Kara Minar said this request is not in competition with the previous request. This has a focus on bylaw 
updates for related to our climate action plan. By a roll call vote, McBee – aye, Minar -aye, Ludwig -aye, 
Oliver – aye, Maiore – aye, approve letter for HCIC’s grant application. 
 

Select Board Reports  
Erin McBee reported noticing the new right to farm signs up around town.  
 

Kara Minar said the School Committee inquired if the Select Board may have funds to assist with 
electricity in the shed at the Anne Lee softball field and for removal of dumpsters there. Rich Maiore 
suggested they put this request in writing. In addition, she noted the School Committee is expecting an y 
increase by the state on the per public costs be allocated to the school department portion of the 
budget. 
 

Kare Minar reported the Energy Advisory Committee will be coming to a Select Board meeting in June to 
discuss their photovoltaic strategy. 
 

Erin McBee confirmed the applicant for the overlay district on Ayer Road withdrew with the intent to 
come back in the fall. The board members agreed an ad-hoc/working group committee would be a good 
approach to assist in vetting potential issues with the proposed language. They will address at their next 
meeting. 
 

Tim Bragan announced the fall town meeting will likely be held on Saturday October 21st based on 
recommendations form the Planning Board. 
 

Rich Mairoe suggested the Select Board members hold their next meeting on May 9th instead of May 2nd 
and then again on May 23rd. All agreed. 
 

The meeting adjourned at 8:50pm 
 

Documents referenced: 
CoD presentation – dated 4.26.2023 
Tree Warden presentation – dated 4.26.2023 
O’Shea disclosure – dated 4.5.2023 
Cons Trust & HCIC MVP grant letters – dated 4.26.2023 
Carlson Orchards Ent License requests – dated 5.1.2023 
Fivesparks Ent License request – dated 2.17.2023 (delay in action due to building safety cert 
requirement) 
Coit vol form – dated 4.19.2023 



Select Board Minutes                                                             1                                                                              April 28, 2023 
 

 
Select Board Minutes 

    Saturday, April 29, 2023 
                       7:00pm 

 
 

The Select Board met, in person, just before Town Meeting, at the Cronin Auditorium located in the 
Bromfield School, on Saturday, April 29, 2023 at 11:45AM.  
 
Select Board participants:    
Rich Maiore, Erin McBee, Kara Minar, Charles Oliver, Don Ludwig 
 
Town Department participants:   
Town Administrator Tim Bragan and Assistant Town Administrator Marie Sobalvarro 
 
Additional participants: 
CPIC Chair Nate Finch and Finance Chair Jennifer Finch 

Chair Rich Maiore called the meeting to order at 11:45AM. 

Re-visit Heavy Duty Dump Truck funding mechanism: 
Select Board Member, serving on CPIC, Don Ludwig, informed the Select Board that CPIC did indeed re-
visit their decision on how to fund the Heavy-Duty Dump Truck under article 19 of the first session of the 
ATM.  He informed the Board that CPIC voted to change the funding source from borrow to funding it 
from the Capital Fund.  The Chair of the Finance Committee, Jennifer Finch, informed the Select Board 
that the Finance Committee also voted to approve the change in funding source for the heavy-duty 
dump truck. Don Ludwig moved that the Select Board vote to change the funding source for the heavy-
duty dump truck from borrowing to funding it from the Capital Fund.  The motion was seconded by 
Select Board member Erin McBee.  There was no further discussion.  The board voted unanimously to 
change the funding mechanism for Article #16 from borrowing to paying for it out of the Capital Fund. 
 
 

The meeting adjourned at 11:56am 
 





 

 

FY 2023 MEANS TESTED SENIOR EXEMPTION 
TOWN OF HARVARD 

 
APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION 

General Court of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Chapter 412 of the Acts of 2018 

 
THIS APPLICATION IS NOT OPEN TO PUBLIC INSPECTION 

 
Requirements 

 
Age: 65 or older (co-owner(s) must be 60 or older) on or before 

December 31, 2021 
 

Resident: At least one owner must have been a resident of Harvard for 
10 consecutive years before filing 

 
Income: Must meet the State Circuit Breaker Limits  

(pursuant to M.G.L. Ch. 62, Sec. 6 (k)) for 2021 
(Single $62,000, Head of Household $78,000, Joint $93,000) 

 
Homeowners Principal Residence, as defined under the Circuit Breaker 

Statute, not to exceed $884,000 for FY 2022 
 

Assets: Maximum of $150,000 excluding the residence 
   

Documentation Needed 
Proof of Age 

Copy of your 2021 Federal Income Tax return 
Copy of your 2021 State Income Tax return 

Schedule CB if not part of your return 
Completed Application 

Trust Documentation if the residence is held in trust 
 

Application Deadline - September 1, 2022 



 

 

THIS APPLICATION IS NOT OPEN TO PUBLIC INSPECTION 
 

Application Deadline - September 1, 2022 
 
 

OWNER/APPLICANT SECTION 

A. Name of Assessed Owner(s): _______________________________________________________ 

B. Date of Birth: ____/____/______ Marital Status: _____________   Phone:_____________ 

C. Legal Residence (Domicile):________________________________________________________ 

D. Mailing Address if Different:_______________________________________________________ 

E. Did you own the property identified in Sec. C above on January 1, 2022? _____ 

F. If yes, were you:   Sole Owner_____ Co-owner with spouse_____ Co-owner with other(s)_____ 

G. Was the title to the property held in a trust as of January 1, 2022? _____ If yes, please attach all 

trust instruments including schedules. 

 

CO-OWNER AGE ELIGIBILITY & RESIDENCY SECTION 

H. Were all co-owners at least 60 years of age on or before December 31, 2021? ______ 

If yes, please state the full name and date of birth for all co-owners: 

Co-owner 1 Name:_________________________________ D.O.B. _____/_____/_______ 

Co-owner 2 Name:_________________________________ D.O.B. _____/_____/_______ 

Co-owner 3 Name:_________________________________ D.O.B. _____/_____/_______ 

I. Number of consecutive years lived in Harvard (highest of all co-owners):  ____________ 

 

REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION 

J. The following documentation is required as part of your application and must be submitted by 

the application deadline: 

• Copy of 2021 Federal Income Tax 1040,1040 A,1040 EZ, etc. 

• Copy of 2021 State Income tax Return 

• 2021 Schedule CB Circuit Breaker (if not part of your State return) 

• Trust documentation (if applicable, see Sec. G above) 

 

Please note: Even if you did not file a Massachusetts State Income Tax Return, 
you must complete, execute and submit a 2021 Schedule CB Circuit Breaker 
form. 
 



 

 

 

ASSETS/VALUE OF PROPERTY OWNED 

K. Real Estate  

      Assessed Value FY 2022   Amount due on Mortgage(s) 

Homeowners Principal Address:  $___________________ $______________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________  

Other Real Estate Address(es), located in ANY jurisdiction:       

______________________________________ $_____________  $_______________ 

 

Income Based on Circuit Breaker Worksheet:      $_______________ 

 

L. Personal Assets 

Bank Accounts:                      Checking: $_______________ 

     Savings: $_______________ 

     CD(s):  $_______________ 

 

Stocks, Bonds, Securities (Combined):                                                           $_______________ 

IRAs, Roth IRA, 401k, Retirement Accounts (Combined):      $_______________  

       Fine Arts (Value):        $_______________ 

       Whole Life Insurance Policy:       $_______________ 

Car(s), Boat(s), Motor Home, Trailer                  $_______________ 
 
                               

Total Assets:          $_______________ 
 
 

Maximum Assets excluding principal residence cannot exceed $150,000 
 

DEBTS/LIABILITIES 

M. Please describe (be specific) your debts other than the mortgages 
listed above, if any:       Amount 

___________________________________________________________$_______________ 

___________________________________________________________$_______________ 

 

SIGNATURE ON NEXT PAGE 

 



 

 

SIGNATURES 

N. BY SIGNING BELOW I DECLARE UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY THAT TO THE BEST OF MY 
KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF, THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS APPLICATION AND ALL 
ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS AND STATEMENTS ARE TRUE, ACCURATE AND COMPLETE. If 
signed by agent, attach a copy of written authorization to sign on behalf of taxpayer. By the 
execution hereof, any such agent represents to the best of his/her knowledge after due inquiry, 
that the information contained in this application and all accompanying documents and 
statements are true, accurate and complete.  
 
 
 
______________________________________________  __________________________ 
Signature       Date 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________  __________________________ 

                  Signature       Date 



Schedule CB  Circuit Breaker Credit. Enclose with Form 1 or Form 1-NR/PY. Do not cut or separate these schedules.   2022

FIRST NAME M.I. LAST NAME SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER OF PROPRIETOR

 

ADDRESS OF PRINCIPAL RESIDENCE IN MASSACHUSETTS (DO NOT ENTER PO BOX) CITY/TOWN STATE ZIP

 1  Living quarters status during 2022:  Homeowner   If homeowner, fill in if multi-use or multi-family property (see instructions)
   Select one only.  Renter (if you received any federal and/or state rent subsidy, or you rent from
   Note: If you moved during the year, see reverse.  a tax-exempt entity, you do not qualify for the Circuit Breaker Credit; see instructions)

 2  Homeowners only, enter assessed value of principal residence as of January 1, 2022. If over $912,000,
   you do not qualify for this credit. See instructions. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 0 0

   INCOME CALCULATION

 3  Massachusetts adjusted gross income (from line 20 of Schedule CB, line 3 worksheet on reverse) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 0 0

 4  Full amount of Social Security benefits received before Medicare premiums (from Form 1099) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 0 0

 5  Pensions/annuities/IRA/Keogh distributions not taxed on your Massachusetts tax return . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 0 0

 6  Miscellaneous income, including cash public assistance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 0 0

 7  Massachusetts total income. Add lines 3 through 6  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  7 0 0

 8  Combine Form 1, lines 2b through 2d or Form 1-NR/PY, lines 4b through 4d . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 0 0

 9  Qualifying income. Subtract line 8 from line 7. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  9 0 0
   You do not qualify for the Circuit Breaker Credit if you are filing as “Single,” and line 9 is greater than $64,000; or you are filing as “Head of
   household,” and line 9 is greater than $80,000; or you are filing as “Married filing jointly,” and line 9 is greater than $96,000.

   CREDIT CALCULATION. If you filled in “Homeowner” in line 1, complete lines 10–17; if “Renter,” skip to line 18.

10  Real estate taxes paid in calendar year 2022 for your principal residence (see instructions)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 0 0

11  Adjustments to real estate taxes (from line 4 of Schedule CB, line 11 worksheet on reverse) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 0 0

12  Subtract line 11 from line 10 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 0 0

13  Enter 50% (.50) of water and sewer use charges paid in 2022 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13 0 0

14  Add lines 12 and 13 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 0 0

15  Income threshold. Multiply line 9 by 10% (.10) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 0 0

16  Subtract line 15 from line 14. If line 15 is equal to or greater than line 14, you do not qualify for this credit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 0 0

17  Enter the lesser of line 16 or $1,200 here and on Form 1, line 44 or Form 1-NR/PY, line 48 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 0 0

18  Enter total amount of rent paid for your principal residence in 2022: a. 0 0  ÷ 4 = . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 0 0

   Landlord’s name and address_______________________________________________________________________

19  Income threshold. Multiply line 9 by 10% (.10) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19 0 0

20  Subtract line 19 from line 18. If line 19 is equal to or greater than line 18, you do not qualify for this credit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 0 0

21  Enter the lesser of line 20 or $1,200 here and on Form 1, line 44 or Form 1-NR/PY, line 48 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21 0 0

You, or your spouse if married filing jointly, must be at least 65 years of age before January 1, 2023 to qualify for this credit. Also, you must
file as single, married filing jointly or head of household to qualify for this credit. If married filing separately, you do not qualify for this credit.



Schedule CB Worksheets
Schedule CB, Line 3 — Massachusetts Income Worksheet
Part 1. Complete only if you only have 5.0% income reported on Form 1,
line 10 or Form 1-NR/PY, line 12 or partnership, trust or S corporation
income not reported on Form 1 or Form 1-NR/PY. Otherwise, enter 0
on line 6 and go to Part 2.

Note: When calculating income for the Circuit Breaker Credit, do not exclude any amount 
on Schedule Y, line 9 that represents a deduction for unemployment compensation.

1. Enter your total 5.0% income from Form 1, line 10 or Form 1-NR/PY,
line 12. Not less than 0* . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
2. Enter the total of Schedule Y, lines 1 through 10 and
line 18 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
3. Subtract line 2 from line 1. Not less than 0. . . . . . . . . . . .
4. Enter total Massachusetts bank interest or the interest exemption amount,
whichever is smaller, from Form 1, line 5a or line 5b or Form 1-NR/PY, line 7a or line 7b 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
5. Enter any income from a partnership, trust or S corporation not reported
on Form 1 or Form 1-NR/PY . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Note: If Form 1, line 10 or Form 1-NR/PY, line 12 is a loss, do not complete line 4 
above. Instead, combine Form 1, line 10 or Form 1-NR/PY, line 12 with the smaller 
amount of total Massachusetts bank interest or the interest exemption amount. Enter the 
result in line 4 above, unless the result is a loss. If the result is a loss, enter 0.

6. Add lines 3 through 5 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Part 2. Complete only if you have interest income (including tax-exempt
interest) other than from Massachusetts banks, dividend income, short-
term capital gains, long-term gains on collectibles and installment sales.
Otherwise, enter 0 on line 11 and go to Part 3.

7. Enter the amount from Schedule B, line 9. If there is no entry
in Schedule B, line 9, enter the amount from Form 1, line 20
or Form 1-NR/PY, line 24. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
8. Enter the amount from Schedule B, line 6. . . . . . . . . . . . .
9. Add lines 7 and 8. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
10. Enter the amount from Schedule B, line 15 . . . . . . . . . . 
11. Add lines 9 and 10. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Part 3. Complete only if you have long-term capital gains or capital gain
distributions. Otherwise, enter 0 on line 18 and go to Part 4.

12. Enter any gains (not including any losses) included in U.S. Schedule D,
lines 8a and 8b, col. h . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
13. Enter any gains (not including any losses) included in U.S. Schedule D,
line 9, col. h . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
14. Enter any gains (not including any losses) included in U.S. Schedule D,
line 10, col. h . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
15. Enter any gains (not including any losses) included in U.S. Schedule D,
line 11, col. h . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
16. Enter any gains (not including any losses) included in U.S. Schedule D,
line 12, col. h . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
17. Enter any gains included in U.S. Schedule D, line 13, col. h. If U.S.
Schedule D not filed, enter the amount from U.S. Form 1040,
line 7 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . .  
18. Add lines 12 through 17 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Part 4. Massachusetts adjusted gross income.

19. Part-year residents, enter any income earned while a nonresident not
included in lines 1 through 18 above. Not less than 0. . . . . .
20. Add lines 6, 11, 18 and 19. Enter the result here and on Schedule CB,
line 3 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

*Add back any Abandoned Building Renovation deduction claimed on
Schedule(s) C and/or E.

Schedule CB, Line 11 — Adjustments to Real Estate Taxes
Paid Worksheet
1. Enter the amount of any real estate tax abatement, including senior
work program, or exemption received in 2022. Do not exclude 
amounts if they were already reflected on your tax bill and you 
did not pay them. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
2. Enter any interest amount paid due to late real estate tax
payments in 2022 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
3. Enter the amount of any betterment or special assessment
paid in 2022. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
4. Add lines 1 through 3. Enter result here and on Schedule CB,
line 11 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Note: If you moved during the year you may have to complete separate computations for each residence that would qualify for the credit. On Schedule CB
you should complete separate computations for each residence for lines 10 through 14 and/or line 18. The income threshold (line 15 or 19) should be
subtracted from the total of these computations to determine if you qualify for the credit.


	SELECT BOARD                              AGENDA                            Tuesday, May 23, 2023                                    7:00pm
	Rich Maiore, Erin McBee, Kara McGuire Minar, Don Ludwig, Charles Oliver
	Pursuant to Chapter 2 of the Acts of 2023, An Act Making Appropriations for the Fiscal Year 2023 to Provide for Supplementing Certain Existing Appropriations and for Certain Other Activities and Projects, and signed into law on
	March 29, 2023, this meeting will be conducted via remote participation. Interested individuals can listen in and
	participate by phone and/or online by following the link and phone number below.
	2 - Select Board 5-23 Presentation_5-17-23.pdf
	���Quarterly Update to Select Board�May 23, 2023
	HEAC FY23 Goals
	① Decarbonization Plan – Reduce Emissions
	② Buildings – Electrification Plan; Building Assessment
	③ Vehicles – Convert to Electric Vehicles
	④ Vehicles – Charging Stations
	⑤ Green Community Program
	⑥ Renewable Electricity – Solar Photovoltaic Systems
	⑦ Renewable Electricity – Energy Supply
	⑧ Streetlights – Replace with LED Fixtures

	HAS_HFD Merge Presentation.pdf
	Harvard Ambulance Service
	HAS History
	Operational Challenges
	Operational Challenges (cont.)
	Administrative Challenges
	Summary Challenges - just in ten years
	Benefits of Merging with HFD
	Questions




